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 1             BE IT REMEMBERED that the above-entitled and
 2  numbered matter came on regularly to be heard before the
 3  Arizona Power Plant and Transmission Line Siting
 4  Committee, commencing at 3:01 p.m. on the 7th day of
 5  December, 2021, with all participants appearing via
 6  videoconference.
 7
    BEFORE:   PAUL A. KATZ, Chairman
 8
 9  APPEARANCES:
10  For the Applicant:
11       JENNINGS, STROUSS & SALMON, P.L.C.
         Mr. Albert Acken
12       One East Washington Street
         Suite 1900
13       Phoenix, Arizona 85004
14       and
15       SALT RIVER PROJECT
         Ms. Karilee Ramaley
16       Senior Principal Attorney
         P.O. Box 52025
17       Legal Services PAB381
         Phoenix, Arizona 85072-2025
18
19  ALSO PRESENT:
20       Mr. William Mcclellan, SRP, Project Co-manager
         Mr. Spence Wilhelm, SRP, Project Co-manager
21       Ms. Michele Maser, SRP, Senior Legal Specialist
         Mr. Josh Robertson, SRP
22          Director, Regulatory Policy & Public Involvement
         Ms. Christina Hallows, SRP
23          Manager, Public Involvement
         Mr. Devin Petry, SWCA Environmental Consultants
24       Ms. Krista Perry, SWCA Environmental Consultants
         Mr. Tod Brewer, Assistant to Chairman Chenal
25
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 1             CHMN. KATZ:  This is the time that we have
 2  set -- and we are on the record -- this is the time we
 3  have set for a prefiling -- yeah, this is a prefiling
 4  conference, correct, in the matter of the application of
 5  Salt River Project to expand their Coolidge power plant.
 6             And I would ask counsel who is present, if he
 7  would, to please identify himself for the court record.
 8             MR. ACKEN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Bert
 9  Acken of Jennings, Strouss & Salmon on behalf of the
10  pending applicant, Salt River Project.
11             CHMN. KATZ:  And are there any other lawyers
12  from SRP that are working with you that are present here
13  today?
14             MR. ACKEN:  Yes.  Karilee Ramaley of SRP Legal
15  is also here and present.  Michele Maser works in the
16  legal department as well as a paralegal for us.
17             CHMN. KATZ:  That's fine.
18             And as we sit here right now, has there been
19  much of any public interest expressed?  I know I've seen
20  a -- Krista has joined us; is that correct?
21             MR. ACKEN:  This is Spence Wilhelm.
22             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.
23             MR. ACKEN:  He is one of the co-project --
24             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.
25             MR. ACKEN:  -- managers.  My apologies.  I
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 1  wasn't sure if Spence was going to be able to join us.
 2             CHMN. KATZ:  And so far has there been any
 3  public interest in this project?
 4             I've seen a letter from somebody that was upset
 5  that we might be burning fossil fuels.  But until we are
 6  completely independent of fossil fuels, we're going to be
 7  needing to generate electricity using them, particularly
 8  when there's inadequate storage of solar and wind power
 9  by and large.
10             Outside of that, has there been any major
11  public interest expressed, positively or negatively?
12             MR. ACKEN:  So we have held a number of open
13  houses, stakeholder outreach, you name it, that Christina
14  will not talk about today but will be prepared to talk
15  about at the hearing.
16             And I would say it's somewhat mixed.  There is
17  certainly the opposition to natural gas from some
18  stakeholders based on climate change reasons.  As of this
19  moment, however, Chairman, I have not heard from anyone
20  indicating that they are planning to intervene.
21             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.
22             MR. ACKEN:  So we had requested nine hearing
23  days with the expectation that we will have intervenors,
24  but that's still to be determined.  As of this moment in
25  time, I don't have a single potential intervenor to
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 1  identify or who has identified themselves to me or anyone
 2  on this call.
 3             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  And if we don't have any,
 4  we might end up -- we still could set it for the two
 5  weeks, but I think that -- I'm hoping that we could get
 6  it done in five -- four and a half days, but we'll have
 7  to wait and see.
 8             MR. ACKEN:  Certainly, I mean, our direct case,
 9  it will be a robust direct case as compared to the last
10  one that you and I just had.  There will be more to our
11  direct.  But, yes, without intervenors, this isn't a
12  nine-day hearing.
13             CHMN. KATZ:  If we get a Motion to Intervene,
14  we will take that up at the hearing, but I might need to
15  get back to you before then to see where we are at before
16  we would have our prehearing conference.
17             But have you -- who are the interested parties
18  that may have been notified, such as cities, towns,
19  counties?
20             MR. ACKEN:  Affected jurisdictions are the City
21  of Coolidge and Pinal County.  So they have been provided
22  or they will be provided notice of the application once
23  filed.  Those are the two affected jurisdictions.
24             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  And I did see that you gave
25  us five exhibits.
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 1             One of them, No. 1, is Land Ownership/
 2  Jurisdiction.  It's a colored map.
 3             The second one is the Notice -- the Draft
 4  Notice of Hearing, which looks fine to me.  And I think
 5  that's the same Radisson Hotel we had an earlier hearing
 6  at, but I'm not going to worry about it.  This Notice of
 7  Hearing looks good to me.  I might want to review it in
 8  further detail with Tod, but right now, it looks
 9  satisfactory.
10             And then Exhibit 3 was the Coolidge Expansion
11  Project Siting Committee Route Tour Itinerary.  And you
12  know from our last hearing, Mr. Acken, that the Committee
13  probably is going to want to have a tour.  I'm assuming
14  that this site is accessible, and a tour isn't going to
15  consume hours and hours.
16             MR. ACKEN:  So we are expecting that the
17  Committee will want a tour, and that's why you have those
18  exhibits that Mr. Petry can speak to if you'd like more
19  information about the tour.
20             Accessibility is going to be an issue.  We are
21  still evaluating our options for members of the general
22  public to get inside the fenceline, so to speak, of the
23  plant itself.  Certainly, we can have folks go up to the
24  fenceline, but we understand the Committee would like to
25  go inside.  I think it makes sense to go inside to show
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 1  some of the existing facility.  We just need to work out
 2  some of the logistics on how we can do that so that we
 3  are prepared in case you have members of the public that
 4  also want to follow along on the tour.
 5             So that's the only open item, if you will.  So
 6  I would ask for some flexibility and time for us to run
 7  that to ground and figure out what that looks like.
 8  Again, if we're talking ten or so members of the public,
 9  we're pretty confident we can accommodate that; but if
10  we've got a lot, we're going to have to figure some
11  things out.  So we need to run that to ground.
12             CHMN. KATZ:  I understand, and I did get your
13  Exhibit 4, which is the route tour.  We don't need to go
14  into detail regarding it.  I'm assuming that from what
15  you're showing, we don't have a lot of driving to do.  I
16  mean, we have to go to Coolidge; but once we're there,
17  I'm assuming, at the site, it's not that expansive of an
18  area that we would be viewing.
19             MR. ACKEN:  No, that's correct, Mr. Chairman.
20  I mean, you're basically doing a 1-mile-square perimeter
21  of the project area with a few stops in there.  The big
22  issue will be if we have a stop inside the facility, that
23  will take some time.
24             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  And how much time do you
25  think we'd likely be between getting there, touring, and
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 1  getting back?  Half a day?  A couple of hours?
 2             MR. ACKEN:  Mr. Chairman, we're assuming half a
 3  day.  You are correct that this is a short drive from
 4  Casa Grande Radisson over to the facility.  But, again,
 5  the lead time to get into the facility and to do and see
 6  some of that, our best estimate right now is half a day.
 7             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  And I do have your
 8  Exhibit 5.  It shows where one, two, three, four, five,
 9  six, seven signs have been posted, and it looks like
10  they're along the east and west perimeter of the site as
11  well as one to the north of the site.  Is that
12  essentially correct?
13             MR. ACKEN:  That's where the signs will be
14  posted.
15             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.
16             MR. ACKEN:  Mr. Petry can correct me, but I
17  think those sign locations are land that SRP owns, so we
18  know we can put signs there.
19             We may be able to post a couple additional
20  signs in other locations, but, frankly, I think seven
21  should be more than adequate if we're unable to do that,
22  and I hope you would agree.  But, yeah, the idea was to,
23  if you will, hit the perimeter of the project with signs.
24             CHMN. KATZ:  I think that that's more than
25  adequate.
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 1             And what publications have taken place
 2  regarding this matter?  Or if not yet, when will you be
 3  publishing?
 4             MR. ACKEN:  So, obviously, publication for the
 5  application will happen after the filing.  There has been
 6  publications done.  But, again, Ms. Hallows would be in a
 7  better position to go into detail for open houses, some
 8  public stakeholder meetings, things of that nature, that
 9  we have done as part of the preapplication phase.
10             Once we file the application, we will be
11  submitting -- the newspaper publication will be the Casa
12  Grande Dispatch.  So there used to be multiple
13  newspapers.  The Coolidge Examiner and Casa Grande
14  Dispatch have merged.  But we will be filing multiple
15  times in that newspaper -- or publishing, excuse me.  So
16  the 18th, the 21st, and the 23rd will all be within our
17  ten-day window from the date of the application filing so
18  we meet our statutory notice time frames.
19             We are also filing as a supplement on the 26th.
20  So we recognize that's outside the statutory window, but
21  we're just doing it as a supplement.
22             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  And the notice of affected
23  jurisdictions.  Have they been sent out yet or is that --
24  it's premature, but you'll be notifying both Casa
25  Grande -- excuse me, Pinal County and Coolidge?
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 1             MR. ACKEN:  That's correct.
 2             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  The evidentiary hearing, we
 3  know where that is going to be set, at that Radisson
 4  Hotel in Casa Grande, correct?
 5             MR. ACKEN:  Yes.  And we'll have the same setup
 6  that the Committee has become accustomed to with both
 7  live-streaming options, all the video technology
 8  available there.
 9             The notice that you saw has the same
10  admonitions and requests that the public participate
11  virtually, but we will certainly be available for some to
12  participate in person should they show.  We do anticipate
13  public interest in this project.  Whether they will
14  appear in Casa Grande or virtually will be determined.
15  But in either event, we will be ready for them.
16             One thing that we have proposed in the Notice
17  of Hearing that I wanted to flag for you is we would like
18  to start this hearing at 9:00 a.m. -- sometimes the
19  Committee will start at 1:00 -- since it's in Casa
20  Grande, which isn't too far a drive for folks that want
21  to drive down.  And also we'll have accommodations for
22  folks that want to come down the night before.  Again,
23  given the concern in case we do draw intervenors and it
24  extends the hearing window, we would like to start right
25  out of the gate at 9.
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 1             CHMN. KATZ:  The reason that I probably won't
 2  agree to do that is that we have Jim Palmer, as an
 3  example, comes here from Graham County.  He attends in
 4  person.  Jack Haenichen comes down from Heber.  And I
 5  don't know whether we'll get Toby little, who lives in
 6  Tucson, to attend or not.  But not everybody is in the
 7  neighborhood.  So the reason we generally start late is
 8  so people don't have to stay in a hotel Sunday night.  So
 9  we probably won't begin until 1:00.  And if we have to go
10  into the second week, we'll recess Friday at 4:30 or 5:00
11  and pick back up the following Monday.
12             And we're looking at starting on January 18th;
13  is that correct?
14             MR. ACKEN:  Correct.  That Tuesday, the day
15  after the Martin Luther King Holiday.
16             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  And you will be making
17  arrangements, be in contact with the Committee Members
18  and working with Tod, to the extent necessary, to make
19  sure that there are adequate accommodations for the
20  Committee Members.
21             And I will be staying, obviously.  I'm not
22  going to -- even though I live in Scottsdale, I'm not
23  going to commute an hour and a half twice a day -- hour,
24  hour and a half, so I will be staying in the hotel.  And
25  that would be Tuesday through Friday.  And if we come
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 1  back, I'll not spend the weekend.  I'll go home.
 2             MR. ACKEN:  Yes, Mr. Chairman, Mr. Petry's team
 3  has been handling logistics for the hearing location
 4  itself as well as accommodations for the Committee and
 5  for our team as well.  And I share your perspective.  I
 6  don't think I'm going to spend the weekend in Casa
 7  Grande.
 8             CHMN. KATZ:  I am going to want -- I don't need
 9  to get an explanation of the tour right now, but I would
10  like to have you submit a plan for a tour at the
11  prehearing conference and file it with the ACC Docket
12  Control folks.
13             MR. ACKEN:  Okay.  So just let me be clear on
14  that ask.  What we have marked as an exhibit for this
15  prefiling is a map showing the route along with the route
16  stops.  Is that adequate, or do you want more information
17  as far as protocol?  Maybe by then, we have this
18  information on what the public can and can't do.  Is that
19  what you'd like to see?
20             CHMN. KATZ:  Well, I think we have the map.
21  That gives us an idea.  But I think we would want to have
22  at the prehearing conference at least a little bit better
23  understanding of how long things might take and how we're
24  going to handle the public versus the Committee Members,
25  etc.
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 1             MR. ACKEN:  Okay.  Understood.  Will do.
 2             CHMN. KATZ:  And, Tod, is there any specific
 3  thing that you think we should be requiring them to do?
 4             MR. BREWER:  Not that I can think of,
 5  Mr. Chairman.
 6             CHMN. KATZ:  Thank you.
 7             And I don't know what day we would take that
 8  tour on.  Sometime on Wednesday?
 9             MR. ACKEN:  That is how we have proposed it.
10  We think that makes sense.  Again, I guess I thought that
11  made -- I was thinking we could get off to an earlier
12  start.  We start at 1:00.  I would like to be able to get
13  through Mr. Mcclellan's direct and some others to lay
14  some -- well, "foundation" is the wrong term, not in a
15  legal sense, but just so it makes a little more sense
16  when the Committee goes on the tour.  But we were
17  thinking the second day would be the best time to do the
18  tour, and that's how the Notice of Hearing is drafted.
19             CHMN. KATZ:  Thank you.
20             And, Tod, when would we be setting our
21  prehearing conference?
22             MR. BREWER:  The week of January the 10th.
23             CHMN. KATZ:  You've probably looked at my
24  calendar.  I don't think I have anything set in January.
25             MR. BREWER:  No, you do not, sir.
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 1             CHMN. KATZ:  So we could do it the 10th -- I
 2  don't have my calendar out, but we could do the 10th,
 3  11th, 12th.  When would you like to have that set?  And
 4  probably at maybe 2:00 in the afternoon?
 5             MR. ACKEN:  So my preference, with that in
 6  mind, would be the 11th if you want to do it in the
 7  afternoon because I'm assuming the Procedural Order will
 8  require us to file and exchange exhibits the day before
 9  the prehearing, if not sooner.
10             CHMN. KATZ:  Right.
11             MR. ACKEN:  So that gives us the 10th to make
12  that happen.  So that would be my ask, is that we do it
13  on the 11th.  The 12th is a little ...
14             CHMN. KATZ:  We could do it on the 11th.  I
15  don't know whether you would prefer it in the morning or
16  the afternoon.
17             MR. ACKEN:  I guess I would prefer it in the
18  afternoon of the 11th or morning of the 12th looking at
19  my schedule personally.
20             CHMN. KATZ:  Tod, what do you think works best?
21  It doesn't matter to me.
22             MR. BREWER:  Let's do 2:00 on the 11th.
23             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  We will do it at 2:00 on
24  the 11th.
25             There's no related litigation or disputes that
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 1  we currently need to discuss; is that correct?
 2             MR. ACKEN:  Yes, that is correct.  Again, we've
 3  heard some folks, obviously, who are opposed to the
 4  project, but they haven't identified themselves to me or
 5  expressed a desire to intervene here or in some other
 6  forum.
 7             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  And one of my checklist
 8  items says to inform you that everyone needs to get a
 9  copy of the application, but that would be only the
10  interested parties or the intervenors and, obviously, the
11  City and Pinal County.
12             MR. ACKEN:  Yes, we will do that.  We're also
13  making it available at a couple library locations.
14             CHMN. KATZ:  And, Tod, I don't have a copy of
15  the Draft Procedural Order.  I'm assuming it's going to
16  be pretty similar to the ones we have previously issued?
17             MR. BREWER:  Correct.
18             CHMN. KATZ:  And, Mr. Acken, it would probably
19  be very similar to the one that you received in the
20  hearing that we just completed.
21             MR. ACKEN:  Yes.  I'm sorry.  The only item --
22  or one item that comes to my mind is in that Procedural
23  Order we haven't talked about is -- I'll say to provide
24  notice through social media as discussed at the
25  prefiling.  So do you want to go over our plan for social
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 1  media notice for the hearing itself now or --
 2             CHMN. KATZ:  I'd at least like to have an idea
 3  of what you're going to be doing regarding social media.
 4             MR. ACKEN:  Okay.  So with that, I'm going to
 5  turn it over to Ms. Hallows to explain the plan for
 6  notice, the social media notice, of the hearing itself.
 7             MS. HALLOWS:  Thank you, Bert.
 8             What our plan is, is to run targeted social
 9  media ads through Facebook, Instagram, and Nextdoor for
10  two weeks.  So we would start that on January 4th, and
11  they would run until Tuesday, January 18th.  And that
12  would be targeted to the 7-mile radius that we've used as
13  our 7-mile notification radius.
14             And also Facebook and Instagram, those ads
15  would be run in English and Spanish, and then Nextdoor is
16  just English.  That's all they offer.
17             CHMN. KATZ:  That's just like it sounds?  I
18  haven't heard of that site before, but it's Nextdoor?
19             MS. HALLOWS:  Nextdoor, uh-huh.
20             CHMN. KATZ:  And are you going to post anything
21  on the SRP website so that the public would have the
22  ability to view that information?
23             MS. HALLOWS:  Yes, sir.
24             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  And are you planning any
25  virtual -- I'm not telling you you have to, but are you
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 1  planning any virtual open houses, or are you having a
 2  phone number for people to contact and ask questions?
 3  And will that be set out on the website?
 4             MS. HALLOWS:  Yes.  We do currently have that,
 5  and we did already hold virtual live open houses as well
 6  as in person.
 7             CHMN. KATZ:  Sounds good.
 8             Mr. Acken, I would also ask that -- and it
 9  could be on a day or two before the hearing, that you get
10  us your draft of the prehearing conference -- not the
11  prehearing conference, but the draft conditions for the
12  CEC.  And I know that this isn't power lines, but there
13  may need to be some revisions in terms of how we do this.
14  I've only sat through about -- I witnessed one and
15  conducted four hearings, but they were all gen-tie lines,
16  and I am not familiar with whether or not the conditions
17  are substantially different when we're dealing with a
18  gas-fired power plant.
19             MR. ACKEN:  We will certainly have proposed
20  conditions tailored to this project.  A number of them in
21  my experience will be similar, but, yes, there is -- we
22  will look to past cases.  There's a handful of recent
23  ones for guidance as to standard conditions to propose.
24             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  And any public comments,
25  we'll probably do those at 5:30 on the first day of the
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 1  hearing.  And if we have a lot of people wanting to talk,
 2  we may limit them to two or three minutes per person.
 3  You'll need to have some cards available for them to sign
 4  in.  And if they appear virtually, we're going to require
 5  them to state their names and perhaps, if it's
 6  complicated, spell their last name for the benefit of the
 7  Committee and our court reporter.
 8             MR. ACKEN:  Yes, we will be prepared for that.
 9             CHMN. KATZ:  And I don't know whether we'll
10  have any of the Board of Supervisors or City officials
11  that want to comment, and I don't know whether or not
12  we'll need to have any of them sworn in.  That's not
13  necessary, but they could be sworn in or affirmed if you
14  think it helps the situation.  If not, they would be
15  given the first opportunity to speak so we won't keep
16  them there for hours and hours if we have a lot of
17  people.
18             And if we don't get all of that done on the
19  first day, we may have public comment continued a couple
20  days thereafter.  But I'm hoping that we don't have more
21  than about an hour or so of public comments or less.  But
22  I have no way of knowing.
23             MR. ACKEN:  Mr. Chairman, with respect to local
24  officials, I can't tell you today whether we will or will
25  not have folks come to speak.  If we do, we appreciate
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 1  the accommodation of letting them speak first if it's in
 2  the evening.  Sometimes what we've done in the past is
 3  have additional public comment sessions, as you said, at
 4  1:00 after a lunch break to accommodate their schedules
 5  and their availability.
 6             CHMN. KATZ:  That's fine.
 7             MR. ACKEN:  I will say it's very unlikely we're
 8  going to ask that they go under oath.  There's not much
 9  past precedent for that.  So we would envision it being
10  in the nature of public comment.
11             CHMN. KATZ:  I'm assuming that this entire
12  expansion is going to be on SRP-owned property; is that
13  correct?
14             MR. ACKEN:  Yes.
15             CHMN. KATZ:  What about -- I'm assuming that we
16  don't have any federal permits that are required, though
17  I'm not sure of that.  But I'm just wondering what the
18  status is of federal, state, county, city, or town
19  permitting.
20             MR. ACKEN:  So there is no federal nexus, no
21  federal permitting requirement, no NEPA analysis.  We're
22  in the -- the project is in the City of Coolidge
23  jurisdiction.  It's zoned for this.
24             As far as building permit, things of that
25  nature, I would defer to Mr. Mcclellan and Mr. Wilhelm if
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 1  they have additional context at this time or if you want
 2  to wait to the hearing for that, but that's kind of a
 3  high-level overview.
 4             CHMN. KATZ:  I'm just don't know -- I'm
 5  assuming that not every permit's going to be applied for
 6  in advance because you need to get the CEC before you can
 7  start doing certain things.  But do we have any pending
 8  permit applications with the City or the County?
 9             MR. ACKEN:  We actually -- you know, we do with
10  the County, an air quality with the Pinal County Air
11  Quality District.  So I should mention the Air Quality
12  Permit with Pinal County, and I believe there will be an
13  Aquifer Protection Permit with ADEQ.  So those -- I know
14  the Air Quality Permit application has been submitted.  I
15  do not know the status of the APP.  Maybe someone else on
16  this call does, or we will certainly have that available.
17             CHMN. KATZ:  I mean, if anybody knows the
18  status, they can identify themselves and let us know.
19  But, obviously, we may not have all of that information
20  presently available.
21             MR. WILHELM:  The APP permit has not been
22  placed yet.
23             CHMN. KATZ:  But you'll be filing that at some
24  point in time with ADEQ?
25             MR. WILHELM:  Yes.
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 1             CHMN. KATZ:  And that's Spence Wilhelm that was
 2  just talking?
 3             MR. WILHELM:  Yes.
 4             CHMN. KATZ:  And are you employed by SRP?
 5             MR. WILHELM:  I am.
 6             CHMN. KATZ:  Thank you very much.
 7             With respect to technology, we've all been
 8  there before.  We need to make sure we have strong WiFi,
 9  and we didn't have any WiFi problems in our last meeting
10  in Casa Grande.  We had a few little glitches in our last
11  hearing in Tucson, but we just need to make sure we have
12  proper, strong, good WiFi.
13             And with respect to exhibits, I always like a
14  hard copy.  Some of the Committee people are more than
15  happy to just get digital copies of the exhibits, but we
16  should have at least a few notebooks available.  We've
17  usually been having about five or six of our members in
18  person, myself included, and three, four, five appearing
19  virtually.  But we just need to make sure they have
20  access to exhibits either electronically or on the screen
21  that gets presented so that they see what we're talking
22  about or hard copies.  And we're obviously not going to
23  be sending hard copies out to those who appear virtually.
24             MR. ACKEN:  Yes, we will do so.  We'll have
25  hard copies available for those that want them and
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 1  tablets for those that want to look at it in electronic
 2  form.
 3             And, yes, it's my expectation that the WiFi
 4  will be up and running long before the hearing starts,
 5  unlike last time.
 6             CHMN. KATZ:  So I'm not all that worried.  Are
 7  you using the same crew as last time, last hearing?
 8             MR. ACKEN:  Yes.
 9             CHMN. KATZ:  Good.  They know what they're
10  doing, and we'll be in good shape.  And I know you'll be
11  providing iPads or some type of tablet for the benefit of
12  the Committee Members to be able to open up exhibits as
13  needed.
14             MR. ACKEN:  Yes.
15             CHMN. KATZ:  Are there any other miscellaneous
16  issues that we need to be aware of today?
17             MR. ACKEN:  Looking at my list, I think we have
18  it covered, but I would ask my team, if someone knows of
19  something that is missing, please speak up.
20             CHMN. KATZ:  I believe our court reporter
21  generally or the company would like to have final
22  transcripts of the conference and hearing posted to the
23  applicant website.
24             And, Carolyn, would we be talking about the
25  transcripts of this proceeding or the transcripts of the
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 1  prehearing conference or just the transcripts of the
 2  hearing itself?
 3             THE COURT REPORTER:  Mr. Chairman, you would
 4  have to speak with Marta Hetzer at my office about that.
 5             CHMN. KATZ:  I will ask you, Mr. Acken, if you
 6  can do that.  And if there are any issues or problems, to
 7  please let me know.
 8             MR. ACKEN:  Yes.  It's our expectation that we
 9  will be -- we will have the read-only transcripts
10  available within a couple days, and then we will post
11  those on the website.
12             CHMN. KATZ:  At the hearing, like I've done
13  previously, we will not go generally any longer than an
14  hour and a half and then take a 15-minute break.  But I'm
15  hopeful that the Committee and your staff, SRP staff and
16  your staff, Mr. Acken, will be cooperative so we don't
17  dillydally.  And if we say 15 minutes, it could be 14, it
18  could be 16, but I don't want it being 25 or 30.
19             MR. ACKEN:  There will be no dillydallying from
20  our team.  Again, if we have intervenors, we're going to
21  ask to keep this moving, and we will do our part to keep
22  it moving.
23             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  Are there any -- I guess
24  there's no objections to be voiced at this point in time
25  to anything because things are still up in the air, and
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 1  we don't have any intervenors that are proposing
 2  intervention that you might object to or giving us
 3  exhibits that are outrageous or inadmissible.
 4             MR. ACKEN:  Yes, that's correct.  I mean the
 5  interventions, if they come, we would expect it would be
 6  from groups that, quite honestly, have the right to
 7  intervene, so there's not going to be much to object to
 8  there.
 9             Individuals, that may be a different approach,
10  and we may ask, just so you know, if we draw a lot of
11  intervention, that some folks be -- their interests be
12  combined for the purposes of a smooth hearing.  But we
13  can deal with that if and when we get to it at the time.
14             CHMN. KATZ:  And I'm not putting it down, but
15  I'm assuming that most of our community members aren't
16  trained lawyers, and I don't know that they'll be
17  prepared to come in pro per as an intervenor or file the
18  appropriate paperwork.  I would expect, though, that if
19  there's a whole host of people that have the same or
20  similar objections that they'll hire a lawyer, but we'll
21  cross that bridge when we come to it.
22             Is there anything else that you think we need
23  to discuss, Mr. Acken?
24             MR. ACKEN:  I do not.  Thank you.
25             CHMN. KATZ:  I'll ask Mr. Brewer, Tod, whether
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 1  he has anything that he thinks I need or we need to
 2  cover.
 3             MR. BREWER:  No, Mr. Chairman, I think we have
 4  everything.
 5             CHMN. KATZ:  Well, I look forward to seeing you
 6  folks after the new year.  Be healthy and happy after the
 7  upcoming holiday season and be healthy.  I already said
 8  that, but hopefully nobody will come down with COVID or
 9  some other terrible disease, and we'll see you early to
10  mid-January.
11             MR. ACKEN:  Thank you.
12             CHMN. KATZ:  Take care.  And if we need to get
13  together again, you can either file something or give Tod
14  or myself a call.
15             MR. ACKEN:  Will do.  Thank you.
16             CHMN. KATZ:  Take care.  Bye-bye.
17             We stand in recess.
18             (The prefiling conference concluded at 3:34.)
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
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 1  STATE OF ARIZONA    )
    COUNTY OF MARICOPA  )
 2
 3            BE IT KNOWN that the foregoing proceedings were
    taken before me; that the foregoing pages are a full,
 4  true, and accurate record of the proceedings, all done to
    the best of my skill and ability; that the proceedings
 5  were taken down by me in shorthand and thereafter reduced
    to print under my direction.
 6
              I CERTIFY that I am in no way related to any of
 7  the parties hereto nor am I in any way interested in the
    outcome hereof.
 8
              I CERTIFY that I have complied with the ethical
 9  obligations set forth in ACJA 7-206(F)(3) and ACJA
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 1             BE IT REMEMBERED that the above-entitled and
   
 2  numbered matter came on regularly to be heard before the
   
 3  Arizona Power Plant and Transmission Line Siting
   
 4  Committee, commencing at 3:01 p.m. on the 7th day of
   
 5  December, 2021, with all participants appearing via
   
 6  videoconference.
   
 7 
    BEFORE:   PAUL A. KATZ, Chairman
 8 
   
 9  APPEARANCES:
   
10  For the Applicant:
   
11       JENNINGS, STROUSS & SALMON, P.L.C.
         Mr. Albert Acken
12       One East Washington Street
         Suite 1900
13       Phoenix, Arizona 85004
   
14       and
   
15       SALT RIVER PROJECT
         Ms. Karilee Ramaley
16       Senior Principal Attorney
         P.O. Box 52025
17       Legal Services PAB381
         Phoenix, Arizona 85072-2025
18 
   
19  ALSO PRESENT:
   
20       Mr. William Mcclellan, SRP, Project Co-manager
         Mr. Spence Wilhelm, SRP, Project Co-manager
21       Ms. Michele Maser, SRP, Senior Legal Specialist
         Mr. Josh Robertson, SRP
22          Director, Regulatory Policy & Public Involvement
         Ms. Christina Hallows, SRP
23          Manager, Public Involvement
         Mr. Devin Petry, SWCA Environmental Consultants
24       Ms. Krista Perry, SWCA Environmental Consultants
         Mr. Tod Brewer, Assistant to Chairman Chenal
25 
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 1      CHMN. KATZ: This is the time that we have
 2  set -- and we are on the record -- this is the time we
 3  have set for a prefiling -- yeah, this is a prefiling
 4  conference, correct, in the matter of the application of
 5  Salt River Project to expand their Coolidge power plant.
 6      And I would ask counsel who is present, if he
 7  would, to please identify himself for the court record.
 8      MR. ACKEN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Bert
 9  Acken of Jennings, Strouss & Salmon on behalf of the
10  pending applicant, Salt River Project.
11      CHMN. KATZ: And are there any other lawyers
12  from SRP that are working with you that are present here
13  today?
14      MR. ACKEN: Yes.  Karilee Ramaley of SRP Legal
15  is also here and present.  Michele Maser works in the
16  legal department as well as a paralegal for us.
17      CHMN. KATZ: That's fine.
18      And as we sit here right now, has there been
19  much of any public interest expressed?  I know I've seen
20  a -- Krista has joined us; is that correct?
21      MR. ACKEN: This is Spence Wilhelm.
22      CHMN. KATZ: Okay.
23      MR. ACKEN: He is one of the co-project --
24      CHMN. KATZ: Okay.
25      MR. ACKEN: -- managers.  My apologies.  I
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 1  wasn't sure if Spence was going to be able to join us.
 2      CHMN. KATZ: And so far has there been any
 3  public interest in this project?
 4      I've seen a letter from somebody that was upset
 5  that we might be burning fossil fuels.  But until we are
 6  completely independent of fossil fuels, we're going to be
 7  needing to generate electricity using them, particularly
 8  when there's inadequate storage of solar and wind power
 9  by and large.
10      Outside of that, has there been any major
11  public interest expressed, positively or negatively?
12      MR. ACKEN: So we have held a number of open
13  houses, stakeholder outreach, you name it, that Christina
14  will not talk about today but will be prepared to talk
15  about at the hearing.
16      And I would say it's somewhat mixed.  There is
17  certainly the opposition to natural gas from some
18  stakeholders based on climate change reasons.  As of this
19  moment, however, Chairman, I have not heard from anyone
20  indicating that they are planning to intervene.
21      CHMN. KATZ: Okay.
22      MR. ACKEN: So we had requested nine hearing
23  days with the expectation that we will have intervenors,
24  but that's still to be determined.  As of this moment in
25  time, I don't have a single potential intervenor to
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 1  identify or who has identified themselves to me or anyone
 2  on this call.
 3      CHMN. KATZ: Okay.  And if we don't have any,
 4  we might end up -- we still could set it for the two
 5  weeks, but I think that -- I'm hoping that we could get
 6  it done in five -- four and a half days, but we'll have
 7  to wait and see.
 8      MR. ACKEN: Certainly, I mean, our direct case,
 9  it will be a robust direct case as compared to the last
10  one that you and I just had.  There will be more to our
11  direct.  But, yes, without intervenors, this isn't a
12  nine-day hearing.
13      CHMN. KATZ: If we get a Motion to Intervene,
14  we will take that up at the hearing, but I might need to
15  get back to you before then to see where we are at before
16  we would have our prehearing conference.
17      But have you -- who are the interested parties
18  that may have been notified, such as cities, towns,
19  counties?
20      MR. ACKEN: Affected jurisdictions are the City
21  of Coolidge and Pinal County.  So they have been provided
22  or they will be provided notice of the application once
23  filed.  Those are the two affected jurisdictions.
24      CHMN. KATZ: Okay.  And I did see that you gave
25  us five exhibits.
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 1      One of them, No. 1, is Land Ownership/
 2  Jurisdiction.  It's a colored map.
 3      The second one is the Notice -- the Draft
 4  Notice of Hearing, which looks fine to me.  And I think
 5  that's the same Radisson Hotel we had an earlier hearing
 6  at, but I'm not going to worry about it.  This Notice of
 7  Hearing looks good to me.  I might want to review it in
 8  further detail with Tod, but right now, it looks
 9  satisfactory.
10      And then Exhibit 3 was the Coolidge Expansion
11  Project Siting Committee Route Tour Itinerary.  And you
12  know from our last hearing, Mr. Acken, that the Committee
13  probably is going to want to have a tour.  I'm assuming
14  that this site is accessible, and a tour isn't going to
15  consume hours and hours.
16      MR. ACKEN: So we are expecting that the
17  Committee will want a tour, and that's why you have those
18  exhibits that Mr. Petry can speak to if you'd like more
19  information about the tour.
20      Accessibility is going to be an issue.  We are
21  still evaluating our options for members of the general
22  public to get inside the fenceline, so to speak, of the
23  plant itself.  Certainly, we can have folks go up to the
24  fenceline, but we understand the Committee would like to
25  go inside.  I think it makes sense to go inside to show
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 1  some of the existing facility.  We just need to work out
 2  some of the logistics on how we can do that so that we
 3  are prepared in case you have members of the public that
 4  also want to follow along on the tour.
 5      So that's the only open item, if you will.  So
 6  I would ask for some flexibility and time for us to run
 7  that to ground and figure out what that looks like.
 8  Again, if we're talking ten or so members of the public,
 9  we're pretty confident we can accommodate that; but if
10  we've got a lot, we're going to have to figure some
11  things out.  So we need to run that to ground.
12      CHMN. KATZ: I understand, and I did get your
13  Exhibit 4, which is the route tour.  We don't need to go
14  into detail regarding it.  I'm assuming that from what
15  you're showing, we don't have a lot of driving to do.  I
16  mean, we have to go to Coolidge; but once we're there,
17  I'm assuming, at the site, it's not that expansive of an
18  area that we would be viewing.
19      MR. ACKEN: No, that's correct, Mr. Chairman.
20  I mean, you're basically doing a 1-mile-square perimeter
21  of the project area with a few stops in there.  The big
22  issue will be if we have a stop inside the facility, that
23  will take some time.
24      CHMN. KATZ: Okay.  And how much time do you
25  think we'd likely be between getting there, touring, and
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 1  getting back?  Half a day?  A couple of hours?
 2      MR. ACKEN: Mr. Chairman, we're assuming half a
 3  day.  You are correct that this is a short drive from
 4  Casa Grande Radisson over to the facility.  But, again,
 5  the lead time to get into the facility and to do and see
 6  some of that, our best estimate right now is half a day.
 7      CHMN. KATZ: Okay.  And I do have your
 8  Exhibit 5.  It shows where one, two, three, four, five,
 9  six, seven signs have been posted, and it looks like
10  they're along the east and west perimeter of the site as
11  well as one to the north of the site.  Is that
12  essentially correct?
13      MR. ACKEN: That's where the signs will be
14  posted.
15      CHMN. KATZ: Okay.
16      MR. ACKEN: Mr. Petry can correct me, but I
17  think those sign locations are land that SRP owns, so we
18  know we can put signs there.
19      We may be able to post a couple additional
20  signs in other locations, but, frankly, I think seven
21  should be more than adequate if we're unable to do that,
22  and I hope you would agree.  But, yeah, the idea was to,
23  if you will, hit the perimeter of the project with signs.
24      CHMN. KATZ: I think that that's more than
25  adequate.
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 1      And what publications have taken place
 2  regarding this matter?  Or if not yet, when will you be
 3  publishing?
 4      MR. ACKEN: So, obviously, publication for the
 5  application will happen after the filing.  There has been
 6  publications done.  But, again, Ms. Hallows would be in a
 7  better position to go into detail for open houses, some
 8  public stakeholder meetings, things of that nature, that
 9  we have done as part of the preapplication phase.
10      Once we file the application, we will be
11  submitting -- the newspaper publication will be the Casa
12  Grande Dispatch.  So there used to be multiple
13  newspapers.  The Coolidge Examiner and Casa Grande
14  Dispatch have merged.  But we will be filing multiple
15  times in that newspaper -- or publishing, excuse me.  So
16  the 18th, the 21st, and the 23rd will all be within our
17  ten-day window from the date of the application filing so
18  we meet our statutory notice time frames.
19      We are also filing as a supplement on the 26th.
20  So we recognize that's outside the statutory window, but
21  we're just doing it as a supplement.
22      CHMN. KATZ: Okay.  And the notice of affected
23  jurisdictions.  Have they been sent out yet or is that --
24  it's premature, but you'll be notifying both Casa
25  Grande -- excuse me, Pinal County and Coolidge?
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 1      MR. ACKEN: That's correct.
 2      CHMN. KATZ: Okay.  The evidentiary hearing, we
 3  know where that is going to be set, at that Radisson
 4  Hotel in Casa Grande, correct?
 5      MR. ACKEN: Yes.  And we'll have the same setup
 6  that the Committee has become accustomed to with both
 7  live-streaming options, all the video technology
 8  available there.
 9      The notice that you saw has the same
10  admonitions and requests that the public participate
11  virtually, but we will certainly be available for some to
12  participate in person should they show.  We do anticipate
13  public interest in this project.  Whether they will
14  appear in Casa Grande or virtually will be determined.
15  But in either event, we will be ready for them.
16      One thing that we have proposed in the Notice
17  of Hearing that I wanted to flag for you is we would like
18  to start this hearing at 9:00 a.m. -- sometimes the
19  Committee will start at 1:00 -- since it's in Casa
20  Grande, which isn't too far a drive for folks that want
21  to drive down.  And also we'll have accommodations for
22  folks that want to come down the night before.  Again,
23  given the concern in case we do draw intervenors and it
24  extends the hearing window, we would like to start right
25  out of the gate at 9.
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 1      CHMN. KATZ: The reason that I probably won't
 2  agree to do that is that we have Jim Palmer, as an
 3  example, comes here from Graham County.  He attends in
 4  person.  Jack Haenichen comes down from Heber.  And I
 5  don't know whether we'll get Toby little, who lives in
 6  Tucson, to attend or not.  But not everybody is in the
 7  neighborhood.  So the reason we generally start late is
 8  so people don't have to stay in a hotel Sunday night.  So
 9  we probably won't begin until 1:00.  And if we have to go
10  into the second week, we'll recess Friday at 4:30 or 5:00
11  and pick back up the following Monday.
12      And we're looking at starting on January 18th;
13  is that correct?
14      MR. ACKEN: Correct.  That Tuesday, the day
15  after the Martin Luther King Holiday.
16      CHMN. KATZ: Okay.  And you will be making
17  arrangements, be in contact with the Committee Members
18  and working with Tod, to the extent necessary, to make
19  sure that there are adequate accommodations for the
20  Committee Members.
21      And I will be staying, obviously.  I'm not
22  going to -- even though I live in Scottsdale, I'm not
23  going to commute an hour and a half twice a day -- hour,
24  hour and a half, so I will be staying in the hotel.  And
25  that would be Tuesday through Friday.  And if we come
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 1  back, I'll not spend the weekend.  I'll go home.
 2      MR. ACKEN: Yes, Mr. Chairman, Mr. Petry's team
 3  has been handling logistics for the hearing location
 4  itself as well as accommodations for the Committee and
 5  for our team as well.  And I share your perspective.  I
 6  don't think I'm going to spend the weekend in Casa
 7  Grande.
 8      CHMN. KATZ: I am going to want -- I don't need
 9  to get an explanation of the tour right now, but I would
10  like to have you submit a plan for a tour at the
11  prehearing conference and file it with the ACC Docket
12  Control folks.
13      MR. ACKEN: Okay.  So just let me be clear on
14  that ask.  What we have marked as an exhibit for this
15  prefiling is a map showing the route along with the route
16  stops.  Is that adequate, or do you want more information
17  as far as protocol?  Maybe by then, we have this
18  information on what the public can and can't do.  Is that
19  what you'd like to see?
20      CHMN. KATZ: Well, I think we have the map.
21  That gives us an idea.  But I think we would want to have
22  at the prehearing conference at least a little bit better
23  understanding of how long things might take and how we're
24  going to handle the public versus the Committee Members,
25  etc.
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 1      MR. ACKEN: Okay.  Understood.  Will do.
 2      CHMN. KATZ: And, Tod, is there any specific
 3  thing that you think we should be requiring them to do?
 4      MR. BREWER: Not that I can think of,
 5  Mr. Chairman.
 6      CHMN. KATZ: Thank you.
 7      And I don't know what day we would take that
 8  tour on.  Sometime on Wednesday?
 9      MR. ACKEN: That is how we have proposed it.
10  We think that makes sense.  Again, I guess I thought that
11  made -- I was thinking we could get off to an earlier
12  start.  We start at 1:00.  I would like to be able to get
13  through Mr. Mcclellan's direct and some others to lay
14  some -- well, "foundation" is the wrong term, not in a
15  legal sense, but just so it makes a little more sense
16  when the Committee goes on the tour.  But we were
17  thinking the second day would be the best time to do the
18  tour, and that's how the Notice of Hearing is drafted.
19      CHMN. KATZ: Thank you.
20      And, Tod, when would we be setting our
21  prehearing conference?
22      MR. BREWER: The week of January the 10th.
23      CHMN. KATZ: You've probably looked at my
24  calendar.  I don't think I have anything set in January.
25      MR. BREWER: No, you do not, sir.
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 1      CHMN. KATZ: So we could do it the 10th -- I
 2  don't have my calendar out, but we could do the 10th,
 3  11th, 12th.  When would you like to have that set?  And
 4  probably at maybe 2:00 in the afternoon?
 5      MR. ACKEN: So my preference, with that in
 6  mind, would be the 11th if you want to do it in the
 7  afternoon because I'm assuming the Procedural Order will
 8  require us to file and exchange exhibits the day before
 9  the prehearing, if not sooner.
10      CHMN. KATZ: Right.
11      MR. ACKEN: So that gives us the 10th to make
12  that happen.  So that would be my ask, is that we do it
13  on the 11th.  The 12th is a little ...
14      CHMN. KATZ: We could do it on the 11th.  I
15  don't know whether you would prefer it in the morning or
16  the afternoon.
17      MR. ACKEN: I guess I would prefer it in the
18  afternoon of the 11th or morning of the 12th looking at
19  my schedule personally.
20      CHMN. KATZ: Tod, what do you think works best?
21  It doesn't matter to me.
22      MR. BREWER: Let's do 2:00 on the 11th.
23      CHMN. KATZ: Okay.  We will do it at 2:00 on
24  the 11th.
25      There's no related litigation or disputes that
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 1  we currently need to discuss; is that correct?
 2      MR. ACKEN: Yes, that is correct.  Again, we've
 3  heard some folks, obviously, who are opposed to the
 4  project, but they haven't identified themselves to me or
 5  expressed a desire to intervene here or in some other
 6  forum.
 7      CHMN. KATZ: Okay.  And one of my checklist
 8  items says to inform you that everyone needs to get a
 9  copy of the application, but that would be only the
10  interested parties or the intervenors and, obviously, the
11  City and Pinal County.
12      MR. ACKEN: Yes, we will do that.  We're also
13  making it available at a couple library locations.
14      CHMN. KATZ: And, Tod, I don't have a copy of
15  the Draft Procedural Order.  I'm assuming it's going to
16  be pretty similar to the ones we have previously issued?
17      MR. BREWER: Correct.
18      CHMN. KATZ: And, Mr. Acken, it would probably
19  be very similar to the one that you received in the
20  hearing that we just completed.
21      MR. ACKEN: Yes.  I'm sorry.  The only item --
22  or one item that comes to my mind is in that Procedural
23  Order we haven't talked about is -- I'll say to provide
24  notice through social media as discussed at the
25  prefiling.  So do you want to go over our plan for social
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 1  media notice for the hearing itself now or --
 2      CHMN. KATZ: I'd at least like to have an idea
 3  of what you're going to be doing regarding social media.
 4      MR. ACKEN: Okay.  So with that, I'm going to
 5  turn it over to Ms. Hallows to explain the plan for
 6  notice, the social media notice, of the hearing itself.
 7      MS. HALLOWS: Thank you, Bert.
 8      What our plan is, is to run targeted social
 9  media ads through Facebook, Instagram, and Nextdoor for
10  two weeks.  So we would start that on January 4th, and
11  they would run until Tuesday, January 18th.  And that
12  would be targeted to the 7-mile radius that we've used as
13  our 7-mile notification radius.
14      And also Facebook and Instagram, those ads
15  would be run in English and Spanish, and then Nextdoor is
16  just English.  That's all they offer.
17      CHMN. KATZ: That's just like it sounds?  I
18  haven't heard of that site before, but it's Nextdoor?
19      MS. HALLOWS: Nextdoor, uh-huh.
20      CHMN. KATZ: And are you going to post anything
21  on the SRP website so that the public would have the
22  ability to view that information?
23      MS. HALLOWS: Yes, sir.
24      CHMN. KATZ: Okay.  And are you planning any
25  virtual -- I'm not telling you you have to, but are you
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 1  planning any virtual open houses, or are you having a
 2  phone number for people to contact and ask questions?
 3  And will that be set out on the website?
 4      MS. HALLOWS: Yes.  We do currently have that,
 5  and we did already hold virtual live open houses as well
 6  as in person.
 7      CHMN. KATZ: Sounds good.
 8      Mr. Acken, I would also ask that -- and it
 9  could be on a day or two before the hearing, that you get
10  us your draft of the prehearing conference -- not the
11  prehearing conference, but the draft conditions for the
12  CEC.  And I know that this isn't power lines, but there
13  may need to be some revisions in terms of how we do this.
14  I've only sat through about -- I witnessed one and
15  conducted four hearings, but they were all gen-tie lines,
16  and I am not familiar with whether or not the conditions
17  are substantially different when we're dealing with a
18  gas-fired power plant.
19      MR. ACKEN: We will certainly have proposed
20  conditions tailored to this project.  A number of them in
21  my experience will be similar, but, yes, there is -- we
22  will look to past cases.  There's a handful of recent
23  ones for guidance as to standard conditions to propose.
24      CHMN. KATZ: Okay.  And any public comments,
25  we'll probably do those at 5:30 on the first day of the
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 1  hearing.  And if we have a lot of people wanting to talk,
 2  we may limit them to two or three minutes per person.
 3  You'll need to have some cards available for them to sign
 4  in.  And if they appear virtually, we're going to require
 5  them to state their names and perhaps, if it's
 6  complicated, spell their last name for the benefit of the
 7  Committee and our court reporter.
 8      MR. ACKEN: Yes, we will be prepared for that.
 9      CHMN. KATZ: And I don't know whether we'll
10  have any of the Board of Supervisors or City officials
11  that want to comment, and I don't know whether or not
12  we'll need to have any of them sworn in.  That's not
13  necessary, but they could be sworn in or affirmed if you
14  think it helps the situation.  If not, they would be
15  given the first opportunity to speak so we won't keep
16  them there for hours and hours if we have a lot of
17  people.
18      And if we don't get all of that done on the
19  first day, we may have public comment continued a couple
20  days thereafter.  But I'm hoping that we don't have more
21  than about an hour or so of public comments or less.  But
22  I have no way of knowing.
23      MR. ACKEN: Mr. Chairman, with respect to local
24  officials, I can't tell you today whether we will or will
25  not have folks come to speak.  If we do, we appreciate
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 1  the accommodation of letting them speak first if it's in
 2  the evening.  Sometimes what we've done in the past is
 3  have additional public comment sessions, as you said, at
 4      1:00 after a lunch break to accommodate their schedules
 5  and their availability.
 6      CHMN. KATZ: That's fine.
 7      MR. ACKEN: I will say it's very unlikely we're
 8  going to ask that they go under oath.  There's not much
 9  past precedent for that.  So we would envision it being
10  in the nature of public comment.
11      CHMN. KATZ: I'm assuming that this entire
12  expansion is going to be on SRP-owned property; is that
13  correct?
14      MR. ACKEN: Yes.
15      CHMN. KATZ: What about -- I'm assuming that we
16  don't have any federal permits that are required, though
17  I'm not sure of that.  But I'm just wondering what the
18  status is of federal, state, county, city, or town
19  permitting.
20      MR. ACKEN: So there is no federal nexus, no
21  federal permitting requirement, no NEPA analysis.  We're
22  in the -- the project is in the City of Coolidge
23  jurisdiction.  It's zoned for this.
24      As far as building permit, things of that
25  nature, I would defer to Mr. Mcclellan and Mr. Wilhelm if
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 1  they have additional context at this time or if you want
 2  to wait to the hearing for that, but that's kind of a
 3  high-level overview.
 4      CHMN. KATZ: I'm just don't know -- I'm
 5  assuming that not every permit's going to be applied for
 6  in advance because you need to get the CEC before you can
 7  start doing certain things.  But do we have any pending
 8  permit applications with the City or the County?
 9      MR. ACKEN: We actually -- you know, we do with
10  the County, an air quality with the Pinal County Air
11  Quality District.  So I should mention the Air Quality
12  Permit with Pinal County, and I believe there will be an
13  Aquifer Protection Permit with ADEQ.  So those -- I know
14  the Air Quality Permit application has been submitted.  I
15  do not know the status of the APP.  Maybe someone else on
16  this call does, or we will certainly have that available.
17      CHMN. KATZ: I mean, if anybody knows the
18  status, they can identify themselves and let us know.
19  But, obviously, we may not have all of that information
20  presently available.
21      MR. WILHELM: The APP permit has not been
22  placed yet.
23      CHMN. KATZ: But you'll be filing that at some
24  point in time with ADEQ?
25      MR. WILHELM: Yes.
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 1      CHMN. KATZ: And that's Spence Wilhelm that was
 2  just talking?
 3      MR. WILHELM: Yes.
 4      CHMN. KATZ: And are you employed by SRP?
 5      MR. WILHELM: I am.
 6      CHMN. KATZ: Thank you very much.
 7      With respect to technology, we've all been
 8  there before.  We need to make sure we have strong WiFi,
 9  and we didn't have any WiFi problems in our last meeting
10  in Casa Grande.  We had a few little glitches in our last
11  hearing in Tucson, but we just need to make sure we have
12  proper, strong, good WiFi.
13      And with respect to exhibits, I always like a
14  hard copy.  Some of the Committee people are more than
15  happy to just get digital copies of the exhibits, but we
16  should have at least a few notebooks available.  We've
17  usually been having about five or six of our members in
18  person, myself included, and three, four, five appearing
19  virtually.  But we just need to make sure they have
20  access to exhibits either electronically or on the screen
21  that gets presented so that they see what we're talking
22  about or hard copies.  And we're obviously not going to
23  be sending hard copies out to those who appear virtually.
24      MR. ACKEN: Yes, we will do so.  We'll have
25  hard copies available for those that want them and
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 1  tablets for those that want to look at it in electronic
 2  form.
 3      And, yes, it's my expectation that the WiFi
 4  will be up and running long before the hearing starts,
 5  unlike last time.
 6      CHMN. KATZ: So I'm not all that worried.  Are
 7  you using the same crew as last time, last hearing?
 8      MR. ACKEN: Yes.
 9      CHMN. KATZ: Good.  They know what they're
10  doing, and we'll be in good shape.  And I know you'll be
11  providing iPads or some type of tablet for the benefit of
12  the Committee Members to be able to open up exhibits as
13  needed.
14      MR. ACKEN: Yes.
15      CHMN. KATZ: Are there any other miscellaneous
16  issues that we need to be aware of today?
17      MR. ACKEN: Looking at my list, I think we have
18  it covered, but I would ask my team, if someone knows of
19  something that is missing, please speak up.
20      CHMN. KATZ: I believe our court reporter
21  generally or the company would like to have final
22  transcripts of the conference and hearing posted to the
23  applicant website.
24      And, Carolyn, would we be talking about the
25  transcripts of this proceeding or the transcripts of the
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 1  prehearing conference or just the transcripts of the
 2  hearing itself?
 3      THE COURT REPORTER: Mr. Chairman, you would
 4  have to speak with Marta Hetzer at my office about that.
 5      CHMN. KATZ: I will ask you, Mr. Acken, if you
 6  can do that.  And if there are any issues or problems, to
 7  please let me know.
 8      MR. ACKEN: Yes.  It's our expectation that we
 9  will be -- we will have the read-only transcripts
10  available within a couple days, and then we will post
11  those on the website.
12      CHMN. KATZ: At the hearing, like I've done
13  previously, we will not go generally any longer than an
14  hour and a half and then take a 15-minute break.  But I'm
15  hopeful that the Committee and your staff, SRP staff and
16  your staff, Mr. Acken, will be cooperative so we don't
17  dillydally.  And if we say 15 minutes, it could be 14, it
18  could be 16, but I don't want it being 25 or 30.
19      MR. ACKEN: There will be no dillydallying from
20  our team.  Again, if we have intervenors, we're going to
21  ask to keep this moving, and we will do our part to keep
22  it moving.
23      CHMN. KATZ: Okay.  Are there any -- I guess
24  there's no objections to be voiced at this point in time
25  to anything because things are still up in the air, and
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 1  we don't have any intervenors that are proposing
 2  intervention that you might object to or giving us
 3  exhibits that are outrageous or inadmissible.
 4      MR. ACKEN: Yes, that's correct.  I mean the
 5  interventions, if they come, we would expect it would be
 6  from groups that, quite honestly, have the right to
 7  intervene, so there's not going to be much to object to
 8  there.
 9      Individuals, that may be a different approach,
10  and we may ask, just so you know, if we draw a lot of
11  intervention, that some folks be -- their interests be
12  combined for the purposes of a smooth hearing.  But we
13  can deal with that if and when we get to it at the time.
14      CHMN. KATZ: And I'm not putting it down, but
15  I'm assuming that most of our community members aren't
16  trained lawyers, and I don't know that they'll be
17  prepared to come in pro per as an intervenor or file the
18  appropriate paperwork.  I would expect, though, that if
19  there's a whole host of people that have the same or
20  similar objections that they'll hire a lawyer, but we'll
21  cross that bridge when we come to it.
22      Is there anything else that you think we need
23  to discuss, Mr. Acken?
24      MR. ACKEN: I do not.  Thank you.
25      CHMN. KATZ: I'll ask Mr. Brewer, Tod, whether
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 1  he has anything that he thinks I need or we need to
 2  cover.
 3      MR. BREWER: No, Mr. Chairman, I think we have
 4  everything.
 5      CHMN. KATZ: Well, I look forward to seeing you
 6  folks after the new year.  Be healthy and happy after the
 7  upcoming holiday season and be healthy.  I already said
 8  that, but hopefully nobody will come down with COVID or
 9  some other terrible disease, and we'll see you early to
10  mid-January.
11      MR. ACKEN: Thank you.
12      CHMN. KATZ: Take care.  And if we need to get
13  together again, you can either file something or give Tod
14  or myself a call.
15      MR. ACKEN: Will do.  Thank you.
16      CHMN. KATZ: Take care.  Bye-bye.
17      We stand in recess.
18      (The prefiling conference concluded at 3:34.)
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25  
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 2 
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 4  true, and accurate record of the proceedings, all done to
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 8
  


 9   APPEARANCES:
  


10   For the Applicant:
  


11        JENNINGS, STROUSS & SALMON, P.L.C.
        Mr. Albert Acken


12        One East Washington Street
        Suite 1900


13        Phoenix, Arizona 85004
  


14        and
  


15        SALT RIVER PROJECT
        Ms. Karilee Ramaley


16        Senior Principal Attorney
        P.O. Box 52025


17        Legal Services PAB381
        Phoenix, Arizona 85072-2025


18
  


19   ALSO PRESENT:
  


20        Mr. William Mcclellan, SRP, Project Co-manager
        Mr. Spence Wilhelm, SRP, Project Co-manager


21        Ms. Michele Maser, SRP, Senior Legal Specialist
        Mr. Josh Robertson, SRP


22           Director, Regulatory Policy & Public Involvement
        Ms. Christina Hallows, SRP


23           Manager, Public Involvement
        Mr. Devin Petry, SWCA Environmental Consultants


24        Ms. Krista Perry, SWCA Environmental Consultants
        Mr. Tod Brewer, Assistant to Chairman Chenal


25


         COASH & COASH, INC.                   602-258-1440
         www.coashandcoash.com                  Phoenix, AZ







LS CASE NO. TBA    PREFILING CONFERENCE    12/07/2021
TEMPORARY BRIEF CAPTION


4


  


 1              CHMN. KATZ:  This is the time that we have
  


 2   set -- and we are on the record -- this is the time we
  


 3   have set for a prefiling -- yeah, this is a prefiling
  


 4   conference, correct, in the matter of the application of
  


 5   Salt River Project to expand their Coolidge power plant.
  


 6              And I would ask counsel who is present, if he
  


 7   would, to please identify himself for the court record.
  


 8              MR. ACKEN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Bert
  


 9   Acken of Jennings, Strouss & Salmon on behalf of the
  


10   pending applicant, Salt River Project.
  


11              CHMN. KATZ:  And are there any other lawyers
  


12   from SRP that are working with you that are present here
  


13   today?
  


14              MR. ACKEN:  Yes.  Karilee Ramaley of SRP Legal
  


15   is also here and present.  Michele Maser works in the
  


16   legal department as well as a paralegal for us.
  


17              CHMN. KATZ:  That's fine.
  


18              And as we sit here right now, has there been
  


19   much of any public interest expressed?  I know I've seen
  


20   a -- Krista has joined us; is that correct?
  


21              MR. ACKEN:  This is Spence Wilhelm.
  


22              CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.
  


23              MR. ACKEN:  He is one of the co-project --
  


24              CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.
  


25              MR. ACKEN:  -- managers.  My apologies.  I
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 1   wasn't sure if Spence was going to be able to join us.
  


 2              CHMN. KATZ:  And so far has there been any
  


 3   public interest in this project?
  


 4              I've seen a letter from somebody that was upset
  


 5   that we might be burning fossil fuels.  But until we are
  


 6   completely independent of fossil fuels, we're going to be
  


 7   needing to generate electricity using them, particularly
  


 8   when there's inadequate storage of solar and wind power
  


 9   by and large.
  


10              Outside of that, has there been any major
  


11   public interest expressed, positively or negatively?
  


12              MR. ACKEN:  So we have held a number of open
  


13   houses, stakeholder outreach, you name it, that Christina
  


14   will not talk about today but will be prepared to talk
  


15   about at the hearing.
  


16              And I would say it's somewhat mixed.  There is
  


17   certainly the opposition to natural gas from some
  


18   stakeholders based on climate change reasons.  As of this
  


19   moment, however, Chairman, I have not heard from anyone
  


20   indicating that they are planning to intervene.
  


21              CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.
  


22              MR. ACKEN:  So we had requested nine hearing
  


23   days with the expectation that we will have intervenors,
  


24   but that's still to be determined.  As of this moment in
  


25   time, I don't have a single potential intervenor to


         COASH & COASH, INC.                   602-258-1440
         www.coashandcoash.com                  Phoenix, AZ







LS CASE NO. TBA    PREFILING CONFERENCE    12/07/2021
TEMPORARY BRIEF CAPTION


6


  


 1   identify or who has identified themselves to me or anyone
  


 2   on this call.
  


 3              CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  And if we don't have any,
  


 4   we might end up -- we still could set it for the two
  


 5   weeks, but I think that -- I'm hoping that we could get
  


 6   it done in five -- four and a half days, but we'll have
  


 7   to wait and see.
  


 8              MR. ACKEN:  Certainly, I mean, our direct case,
  


 9   it will be a robust direct case as compared to the last
  


10   one that you and I just had.  There will be more to our
  


11   direct.  But, yes, without intervenors, this isn't a
  


12   nine-day hearing.
  


13              CHMN. KATZ:  If we get a Motion to Intervene,
  


14   we will take that up at the hearing, but I might need to
  


15   get back to you before then to see where we are at before
  


16   we would have our prehearing conference.
  


17              But have you -- who are the interested parties
  


18   that may have been notified, such as cities, towns,
  


19   counties?
  


20              MR. ACKEN:  Affected jurisdictions are the City
  


21   of Coolidge and Pinal County.  So they have been provided
  


22   or they will be provided notice of the application once
  


23   filed.  Those are the two affected jurisdictions.
  


24              CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  And I did see that you gave
  


25   us five exhibits.
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 1              One of them, No. 1, is Land Ownership/
  


 2   Jurisdiction.  It's a colored map.
  


 3              The second one is the Notice -- the Draft
  


 4   Notice of Hearing, which looks fine to me.  And I think
  


 5   that's the same Radisson Hotel we had an earlier hearing
  


 6   at, but I'm not going to worry about it.  This Notice of
  


 7   Hearing looks good to me.  I might want to review it in
  


 8   further detail with Tod, but right now, it looks
  


 9   satisfactory.
  


10              And then Exhibit 3 was the Coolidge Expansion
  


11   Project Siting Committee Route Tour Itinerary.  And you
  


12   know from our last hearing, Mr. Acken, that the Committee
  


13   probably is going to want to have a tour.  I'm assuming
  


14   that this site is accessible, and a tour isn't going to
  


15   consume hours and hours.
  


16              MR. ACKEN:  So we are expecting that the
  


17   Committee will want a tour, and that's why you have those
  


18   exhibits that Mr. Petry can speak to if you'd like more
  


19   information about the tour.
  


20              Accessibility is going to be an issue.  We are
  


21   still evaluating our options for members of the general
  


22   public to get inside the fenceline, so to speak, of the
  


23   plant itself.  Certainly, we can have folks go up to the
  


24   fenceline, but we understand the Committee would like to
  


25   go inside.  I think it makes sense to go inside to show
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 1   some of the existing facility.  We just need to work out
  


 2   some of the logistics on how we can do that so that we
  


 3   are prepared in case you have members of the public that
  


 4   also want to follow along on the tour.
  


 5              So that's the only open item, if you will.  So
  


 6   I would ask for some flexibility and time for us to run
  


 7   that to ground and figure out what that looks like.
  


 8   Again, if we're talking ten or so members of the public,
  


 9   we're pretty confident we can accommodate that; but if
  


10   we've got a lot, we're going to have to figure some
  


11   things out.  So we need to run that to ground.
  


12              CHMN. KATZ:  I understand, and I did get your
  


13   Exhibit 4, which is the route tour.  We don't need to go
  


14   into detail regarding it.  I'm assuming that from what
  


15   you're showing, we don't have a lot of driving to do.  I
  


16   mean, we have to go to Coolidge; but once we're there,
  


17   I'm assuming, at the site, it's not that expansive of an
  


18   area that we would be viewing.
  


19              MR. ACKEN:  No, that's correct, Mr. Chairman.
  


20   I mean, you're basically doing a 1-mile-square perimeter
  


21   of the project area with a few stops in there.  The big
  


22   issue will be if we have a stop inside the facility, that
  


23   will take some time.
  


24              CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  And how much time do you
  


25   think we'd likely be between getting there, touring, and
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 1   getting back?  Half a day?  A couple of hours?
  


 2              MR. ACKEN:  Mr. Chairman, we're assuming half a
  


 3   day.  You are correct that this is a short drive from
  


 4   Casa Grande Radisson over to the facility.  But, again,
  


 5   the lead time to get into the facility and to do and see
  


 6   some of that, our best estimate right now is half a day.
  


 7              CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  And I do have your
  


 8   Exhibit 5.  It shows where one, two, three, four, five,
  


 9   six, seven signs have been posted, and it looks like
  


10   they're along the east and west perimeter of the site as
  


11   well as one to the north of the site.  Is that
  


12   essentially correct?
  


13              MR. ACKEN:  That's where the signs will be
  


14   posted.
  


15              CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.
  


16              MR. ACKEN:  Mr. Petry can correct me, but I
  


17   think those sign locations are land that SRP owns, so we
  


18   know we can put signs there.
  


19              We may be able to post a couple additional
  


20   signs in other locations, but, frankly, I think seven
  


21   should be more than adequate if we're unable to do that,
  


22   and I hope you would agree.  But, yeah, the idea was to,
  


23   if you will, hit the perimeter of the project with signs.
  


24              CHMN. KATZ:  I think that that's more than
  


25   adequate.
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 1              And what publications have taken place
  


 2   regarding this matter?  Or if not yet, when will you be
  


 3   publishing?
  


 4              MR. ACKEN:  So, obviously, publication for the
  


 5   application will happen after the filing.  There has been
  


 6   publications done.  But, again, Ms. Hallows would be in a
  


 7   better position to go into detail for open houses, some
  


 8   public stakeholder meetings, things of that nature, that
  


 9   we have done as part of the preapplication phase.
  


10              Once we file the application, we will be
  


11   submitting -- the newspaper publication will be the Casa
  


12   Grande Dispatch.  So there used to be multiple
  


13   newspapers.  The Coolidge Examiner and Casa Grande
  


14   Dispatch have merged.  But we will be filing multiple
  


15   times in that newspaper -- or publishing, excuse me.  So
  


16   the 18th, the 21st, and the 23rd will all be within our
  


17   ten-day window from the date of the application filing so
  


18   we meet our statutory notice time frames.
  


19              We are also filing as a supplement on the 26th.
  


20   So we recognize that's outside the statutory window, but
  


21   we're just doing it as a supplement.
  


22              CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  And the notice of affected
  


23   jurisdictions.  Have they been sent out yet or is that --
  


24   it's premature, but you'll be notifying both Casa
  


25   Grande -- excuse me, Pinal County and Coolidge?


         COASH & COASH, INC.                   602-258-1440
         www.coashandcoash.com                  Phoenix, AZ







LS CASE NO. TBA    PREFILING CONFERENCE    12/07/2021
TEMPORARY BRIEF CAPTION


11


  


 1              MR. ACKEN:  That's correct.
  


 2              CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  The evidentiary hearing, we
  


 3   know where that is going to be set, at that Radisson
  


 4   Hotel in Casa Grande, correct?
  


 5              MR. ACKEN:  Yes.  And we'll have the same setup
  


 6   that the Committee has become accustomed to with both
  


 7   live-streaming options, all the video technology
  


 8   available there.
  


 9              The notice that you saw has the same
  


10   admonitions and requests that the public participate
  


11   virtually, but we will certainly be available for some to
  


12   participate in person should they show.  We do anticipate
  


13   public interest in this project.  Whether they will
  


14   appear in Casa Grande or virtually will be determined.
  


15   But in either event, we will be ready for them.
  


16              One thing that we have proposed in the Notice
  


17   of Hearing that I wanted to flag for you is we would like
  


18   to start this hearing at 9:00 a.m. -- sometimes the
  


19   Committee will start at 1:00 -- since it's in Casa
  


20   Grande, which isn't too far a drive for folks that want
  


21   to drive down.  And also we'll have accommodations for
  


22   folks that want to come down the night before.  Again,
  


23   given the concern in case we do draw intervenors and it
  


24   extends the hearing window, we would like to start right
  


25   out of the gate at 9.
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 1              CHMN. KATZ:  The reason that I probably won't
  


 2   agree to do that is that we have Jim Palmer, as an
  


 3   example, comes here from Graham County.  He attends in
  


 4   person.  Jack Haenichen comes down from Heber.  And I
  


 5   don't know whether we'll get Toby little, who lives in
  


 6   Tucson, to attend or not.  But not everybody is in the
  


 7   neighborhood.  So the reason we generally start late is
  


 8   so people don't have to stay in a hotel Sunday night.  So
  


 9   we probably won't begin until 1:00.  And if we have to go
  


10   into the second week, we'll recess Friday at 4:30 or 5:00
  


11   and pick back up the following Monday.
  


12              And we're looking at starting on January 18th;
  


13   is that correct?
  


14              MR. ACKEN:  Correct.  That Tuesday, the day
  


15   after the Martin Luther King Holiday.
  


16              CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  And you will be making
  


17   arrangements, be in contact with the Committee Members
  


18   and working with Tod, to the extent necessary, to make
  


19   sure that there are adequate accommodations for the
  


20   Committee Members.
  


21              And I will be staying, obviously.  I'm not
  


22   going to -- even though I live in Scottsdale, I'm not
  


23   going to commute an hour and a half twice a day -- hour,
  


24   hour and a half, so I will be staying in the hotel.  And
  


25   that would be Tuesday through Friday.  And if we come
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 1   back, I'll not spend the weekend.  I'll go home.
  


 2              MR. ACKEN:  Yes, Mr. Chairman, Mr. Petry's team
  


 3   has been handling logistics for the hearing location
  


 4   itself as well as accommodations for the Committee and
  


 5   for our team as well.  And I share your perspective.  I
  


 6   don't think I'm going to spend the weekend in Casa
  


 7   Grande.
  


 8              CHMN. KATZ:  I am going to want -- I don't need
  


 9   to get an explanation of the tour right now, but I would
  


10   like to have you submit a plan for a tour at the
  


11   prehearing conference and file it with the ACC Docket
  


12   Control folks.
  


13              MR. ACKEN:  Okay.  So just let me be clear on
  


14   that ask.  What we have marked as an exhibit for this
  


15   prefiling is a map showing the route along with the route
  


16   stops.  Is that adequate, or do you want more information
  


17   as far as protocol?  Maybe by then, we have this
  


18   information on what the public can and can't do.  Is that
  


19   what you'd like to see?
  


20              CHMN. KATZ:  Well, I think we have the map.
  


21   That gives us an idea.  But I think we would want to have
  


22   at the prehearing conference at least a little bit better
  


23   understanding of how long things might take and how we're
  


24   going to handle the public versus the Committee Members,
  


25   etc.
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 1              MR. ACKEN:  Okay.  Understood.  Will do.
  


 2              CHMN. KATZ:  And, Tod, is there any specific
  


 3   thing that you think we should be requiring them to do?
  


 4              MR. BREWER:  Not that I can think of,
  


 5   Mr. Chairman.
  


 6              CHMN. KATZ:  Thank you.
  


 7              And I don't know what day we would take that
  


 8   tour on.  Sometime on Wednesday?
  


 9              MR. ACKEN:  That is how we have proposed it.
  


10   We think that makes sense.  Again, I guess I thought that
  


11   made -- I was thinking we could get off to an earlier
  


12   start.  We start at 1:00.  I would like to be able to get
  


13   through Mr. Mcclellan's direct and some others to lay
  


14   some -- well, "foundation" is the wrong term, not in a
  


15   legal sense, but just so it makes a little more sense
  


16   when the Committee goes on the tour.  But we were
  


17   thinking the second day would be the best time to do the
  


18   tour, and that's how the Notice of Hearing is drafted.
  


19              CHMN. KATZ:  Thank you.
  


20              And, Tod, when would we be setting our
  


21   prehearing conference?
  


22              MR. BREWER:  The week of January the 10th.
  


23              CHMN. KATZ:  You've probably looked at my
  


24   calendar.  I don't think I have anything set in January.
  


25              MR. BREWER:  No, you do not, sir.
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 1              CHMN. KATZ:  So we could do it the 10th -- I
  


 2   don't have my calendar out, but we could do the 10th,
  


 3   11th, 12th.  When would you like to have that set?  And
  


 4   probably at maybe 2:00 in the afternoon?
  


 5              MR. ACKEN:  So my preference, with that in
  


 6   mind, would be the 11th if you want to do it in the
  


 7   afternoon because I'm assuming the Procedural Order will
  


 8   require us to file and exchange exhibits the day before
  


 9   the prehearing, if not sooner.
  


10              CHMN. KATZ:  Right.
  


11              MR. ACKEN:  So that gives us the 10th to make
  


12   that happen.  So that would be my ask, is that we do it
  


13   on the 11th.  The 12th is a little ...
  


14              CHMN. KATZ:  We could do it on the 11th.  I
  


15   don't know whether you would prefer it in the morning or
  


16   the afternoon.
  


17              MR. ACKEN:  I guess I would prefer it in the
  


18   afternoon of the 11th or morning of the 12th looking at
  


19   my schedule personally.
  


20              CHMN. KATZ:  Tod, what do you think works best?
  


21   It doesn't matter to me.
  


22              MR. BREWER:  Let's do 2:00 on the 11th.
  


23              CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  We will do it at 2:00 on
  


24   the 11th.
  


25              There's no related litigation or disputes that
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 1   we currently need to discuss; is that correct?
  


 2              MR. ACKEN:  Yes, that is correct.  Again, we've
  


 3   heard some folks, obviously, who are opposed to the
  


 4   project, but they haven't identified themselves to me or
  


 5   expressed a desire to intervene here or in some other
  


 6   forum.
  


 7              CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  And one of my checklist
  


 8   items says to inform you that everyone needs to get a
  


 9   copy of the application, but that would be only the
  


10   interested parties or the intervenors and, obviously, the
  


11   City and Pinal County.
  


12              MR. ACKEN:  Yes, we will do that.  We're also
  


13   making it available at a couple library locations.
  


14              CHMN. KATZ:  And, Tod, I don't have a copy of
  


15   the Draft Procedural Order.  I'm assuming it's going to
  


16   be pretty similar to the ones we have previously issued?
  


17              MR. BREWER:  Correct.
  


18              CHMN. KATZ:  And, Mr. Acken, it would probably
  


19   be very similar to the one that you received in the
  


20   hearing that we just completed.
  


21              MR. ACKEN:  Yes.  I'm sorry.  The only item --
  


22   or one item that comes to my mind is in that Procedural
  


23   Order we haven't talked about is -- I'll say to provide
  


24   notice through social media as discussed at the
  


25   prefiling.  So do you want to go over our plan for social


         COASH & COASH, INC.                   602-258-1440
         www.coashandcoash.com                  Phoenix, AZ







LS CASE NO. TBA    PREFILING CONFERENCE    12/07/2021
TEMPORARY BRIEF CAPTION


17


  


 1   media notice for the hearing itself now or --
  


 2              CHMN. KATZ:  I'd at least like to have an idea
  


 3   of what you're going to be doing regarding social media.
  


 4              MR. ACKEN:  Okay.  So with that, I'm going to
  


 5   turn it over to Ms. Hallows to explain the plan for
  


 6   notice, the social media notice, of the hearing itself.
  


 7              MS. HALLOWS:  Thank you, Bert.
  


 8              What our plan is, is to run targeted social
  


 9   media ads through Facebook, Instagram, and Nextdoor for
  


10   two weeks.  So we would start that on January 4th, and
  


11   they would run until Tuesday, January 18th.  And that
  


12   would be targeted to the 7-mile radius that we've used as
  


13   our 7-mile notification radius.
  


14              And also Facebook and Instagram, those ads
  


15   would be run in English and Spanish, and then Nextdoor is
  


16   just English.  That's all they offer.
  


17              CHMN. KATZ:  That's just like it sounds?  I
  


18   haven't heard of that site before, but it's Nextdoor?
  


19              MS. HALLOWS:  Nextdoor, uh-huh.
  


20              CHMN. KATZ:  And are you going to post anything
  


21   on the SRP website so that the public would have the
  


22   ability to view that information?
  


23              MS. HALLOWS:  Yes, sir.
  


24              CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  And are you planning any
  


25   virtual -- I'm not telling you you have to, but are you
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 1   planning any virtual open houses, or are you having a
  


 2   phone number for people to contact and ask questions?
  


 3   And will that be set out on the website?
  


 4              MS. HALLOWS:  Yes.  We do currently have that,
  


 5   and we did already hold virtual live open houses as well
  


 6   as in person.
  


 7              CHMN. KATZ:  Sounds good.
  


 8              Mr. Acken, I would also ask that -- and it
  


 9   could be on a day or two before the hearing, that you get
  


10   us your draft of the prehearing conference -- not the
  


11   prehearing conference, but the draft conditions for the
  


12   CEC.  And I know that this isn't power lines, but there
  


13   may need to be some revisions in terms of how we do this.
  


14   I've only sat through about -- I witnessed one and
  


15   conducted four hearings, but they were all gen-tie lines,
  


16   and I am not familiar with whether or not the conditions
  


17   are substantially different when we're dealing with a
  


18   gas-fired power plant.
  


19              MR. ACKEN:  We will certainly have proposed
  


20   conditions tailored to this project.  A number of them in
  


21   my experience will be similar, but, yes, there is -- we
  


22   will look to past cases.  There's a handful of recent
  


23   ones for guidance as to standard conditions to propose.
  


24              CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  And any public comments,
  


25   we'll probably do those at 5:30 on the first day of the
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 1   hearing.  And if we have a lot of people wanting to talk,
  


 2   we may limit them to two or three minutes per person.
  


 3   You'll need to have some cards available for them to sign
  


 4   in.  And if they appear virtually, we're going to require
  


 5   them to state their names and perhaps, if it's
  


 6   complicated, spell their last name for the benefit of the
  


 7   Committee and our court reporter.
  


 8              MR. ACKEN:  Yes, we will be prepared for that.
  


 9              CHMN. KATZ:  And I don't know whether we'll
  


10   have any of the Board of Supervisors or City officials
  


11   that want to comment, and I don't know whether or not
  


12   we'll need to have any of them sworn in.  That's not
  


13   necessary, but they could be sworn in or affirmed if you
  


14   think it helps the situation.  If not, they would be
  


15   given the first opportunity to speak so we won't keep
  


16   them there for hours and hours if we have a lot of
  


17   people.
  


18              And if we don't get all of that done on the
  


19   first day, we may have public comment continued a couple
  


20   days thereafter.  But I'm hoping that we don't have more
  


21   than about an hour or so of public comments or less.  But
  


22   I have no way of knowing.
  


23              MR. ACKEN:  Mr. Chairman, with respect to local
  


24   officials, I can't tell you today whether we will or will
  


25   not have folks come to speak.  If we do, we appreciate
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 1   the accommodation of letting them speak first if it's in
  


 2   the evening.  Sometimes what we've done in the past is
  


 3   have additional public comment sessions, as you said, at
  


 4   1:00 after a lunch break to accommodate their schedules
  


 5   and their availability.
  


 6              CHMN. KATZ:  That's fine.
  


 7              MR. ACKEN:  I will say it's very unlikely we're
  


 8   going to ask that they go under oath.  There's not much
  


 9   past precedent for that.  So we would envision it being
  


10   in the nature of public comment.
  


11              CHMN. KATZ:  I'm assuming that this entire
  


12   expansion is going to be on SRP-owned property; is that
  


13   correct?
  


14              MR. ACKEN:  Yes.
  


15              CHMN. KATZ:  What about -- I'm assuming that we
  


16   don't have any federal permits that are required, though
  


17   I'm not sure of that.  But I'm just wondering what the
  


18   status is of federal, state, county, city, or town
  


19   permitting.
  


20              MR. ACKEN:  So there is no federal nexus, no
  


21   federal permitting requirement, no NEPA analysis.  We're
  


22   in the -- the project is in the City of Coolidge
  


23   jurisdiction.  It's zoned for this.
  


24              As far as building permit, things of that
  


25   nature, I would defer to Mr. Mcclellan and Mr. Wilhelm if
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 1   they have additional context at this time or if you want
  


 2   to wait to the hearing for that, but that's kind of a
  


 3   high-level overview.
  


 4              CHMN. KATZ:  I'm just don't know -- I'm
  


 5   assuming that not every permit's going to be applied for
  


 6   in advance because you need to get the CEC before you can
  


 7   start doing certain things.  But do we have any pending
  


 8   permit applications with the City or the County?
  


 9              MR. ACKEN:  We actually -- you know, we do with
  


10   the County, an air quality with the Pinal County Air
  


11   Quality District.  So I should mention the Air Quality
  


12   Permit with Pinal County, and I believe there will be an
  


13   Aquifer Protection Permit with ADEQ.  So those -- I know
  


14   the Air Quality Permit application has been submitted.  I
  


15   do not know the status of the APP.  Maybe someone else on
  


16   this call does, or we will certainly have that available.
  


17              CHMN. KATZ:  I mean, if anybody knows the
  


18   status, they can identify themselves and let us know.
  


19   But, obviously, we may not have all of that information
  


20   presently available.
  


21              MR. WILHELM:  The APP permit has not been
  


22   placed yet.
  


23              CHMN. KATZ:  But you'll be filing that at some
  


24   point in time with ADEQ?
  


25              MR. WILHELM:  Yes.
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 1              CHMN. KATZ:  And that's Spence Wilhelm that was
  


 2   just talking?
  


 3              MR. WILHELM:  Yes.
  


 4              CHMN. KATZ:  And are you employed by SRP?
  


 5              MR. WILHELM:  I am.
  


 6              CHMN. KATZ:  Thank you very much.
  


 7              With respect to technology, we've all been
  


 8   there before.  We need to make sure we have strong WiFi,
  


 9   and we didn't have any WiFi problems in our last meeting
  


10   in Casa Grande.  We had a few little glitches in our last
  


11   hearing in Tucson, but we just need to make sure we have
  


12   proper, strong, good WiFi.
  


13              And with respect to exhibits, I always like a
  


14   hard copy.  Some of the Committee people are more than
  


15   happy to just get digital copies of the exhibits, but we
  


16   should have at least a few notebooks available.  We've
  


17   usually been having about five or six of our members in
  


18   person, myself included, and three, four, five appearing
  


19   virtually.  But we just need to make sure they have
  


20   access to exhibits either electronically or on the screen
  


21   that gets presented so that they see what we're talking
  


22   about or hard copies.  And we're obviously not going to
  


23   be sending hard copies out to those who appear virtually.
  


24              MR. ACKEN:  Yes, we will do so.  We'll have
  


25   hard copies available for those that want them and
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 1   tablets for those that want to look at it in electronic
  


 2   form.
  


 3              And, yes, it's my expectation that the WiFi
  


 4   will be up and running long before the hearing starts,
  


 5   unlike last time.
  


 6              CHMN. KATZ:  So I'm not all that worried.  Are
  


 7   you using the same crew as last time, last hearing?
  


 8              MR. ACKEN:  Yes.
  


 9              CHMN. KATZ:  Good.  They know what they're
  


10   doing, and we'll be in good shape.  And I know you'll be
  


11   providing iPads or some type of tablet for the benefit of
  


12   the Committee Members to be able to open up exhibits as
  


13   needed.
  


14              MR. ACKEN:  Yes.
  


15              CHMN. KATZ:  Are there any other miscellaneous
  


16   issues that we need to be aware of today?
  


17              MR. ACKEN:  Looking at my list, I think we have
  


18   it covered, but I would ask my team, if someone knows of
  


19   something that is missing, please speak up.
  


20              CHMN. KATZ:  I believe our court reporter
  


21   generally or the company would like to have final
  


22   transcripts of the conference and hearing posted to the
  


23   applicant website.
  


24              And, Carolyn, would we be talking about the
  


25   transcripts of this proceeding or the transcripts of the
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 1   prehearing conference or just the transcripts of the
  


 2   hearing itself?
  


 3              THE COURT REPORTER:  Mr. Chairman, you would
  


 4   have to speak with Marta Hetzer at my office about that.
  


 5              CHMN. KATZ:  I will ask you, Mr. Acken, if you
  


 6   can do that.  And if there are any issues or problems, to
  


 7   please let me know.
  


 8              MR. ACKEN:  Yes.  It's our expectation that we
  


 9   will be -- we will have the read-only transcripts
  


10   available within a couple days, and then we will post
  


11   those on the website.
  


12              CHMN. KATZ:  At the hearing, like I've done
  


13   previously, we will not go generally any longer than an
  


14   hour and a half and then take a 15-minute break.  But I'm
  


15   hopeful that the Committee and your staff, SRP staff and
  


16   your staff, Mr. Acken, will be cooperative so we don't
  


17   dillydally.  And if we say 15 minutes, it could be 14, it
  


18   could be 16, but I don't want it being 25 or 30.
  


19              MR. ACKEN:  There will be no dillydallying from
  


20   our team.  Again, if we have intervenors, we're going to
  


21   ask to keep this moving, and we will do our part to keep
  


22   it moving.
  


23              CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  Are there any -- I guess
  


24   there's no objections to be voiced at this point in time
  


25   to anything because things are still up in the air, and
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 1   we don't have any intervenors that are proposing
  


 2   intervention that you might object to or giving us
  


 3   exhibits that are outrageous or inadmissible.
  


 4              MR. ACKEN:  Yes, that's correct.  I mean the
  


 5   interventions, if they come, we would expect it would be
  


 6   from groups that, quite honestly, have the right to
  


 7   intervene, so there's not going to be much to object to
  


 8   there.
  


 9              Individuals, that may be a different approach,
  


10   and we may ask, just so you know, if we draw a lot of
  


11   intervention, that some folks be -- their interests be
  


12   combined for the purposes of a smooth hearing.  But we
  


13   can deal with that if and when we get to it at the time.
  


14              CHMN. KATZ:  And I'm not putting it down, but
  


15   I'm assuming that most of our community members aren't
  


16   trained lawyers, and I don't know that they'll be
  


17   prepared to come in pro per as an intervenor or file the
  


18   appropriate paperwork.  I would expect, though, that if
  


19   there's a whole host of people that have the same or
  


20   similar objections that they'll hire a lawyer, but we'll
  


21   cross that bridge when we come to it.
  


22              Is there anything else that you think we need
  


23   to discuss, Mr. Acken?
  


24              MR. ACKEN:  I do not.  Thank you.
  


25              CHMN. KATZ:  I'll ask Mr. Brewer, Tod, whether
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 1   he has anything that he thinks I need or we need to
  


 2   cover.
  


 3              MR. BREWER:  No, Mr. Chairman, I think we have
  


 4   everything.
  


 5              CHMN. KATZ:  Well, I look forward to seeing you
  


 6   folks after the new year.  Be healthy and happy after the
  


 7   upcoming holiday season and be healthy.  I already said
  


 8   that, but hopefully nobody will come down with COVID or
  


 9   some other terrible disease, and we'll see you early to
  


10   mid-January.
  


11              MR. ACKEN:  Thank you.
  


12              CHMN. KATZ:  Take care.  And if we need to get
  


13   together again, you can either file something or give Tod
  


14   or myself a call.
  


15              MR. ACKEN:  Will do.  Thank you.
  


16              CHMN. KATZ:  Take care.  Bye-bye.
  


17              We stand in recess.
  


18              (The prefiling conference concluded at 3:34.)
  


19
  


20
  


21
  


22
  


23
  


24
  


25
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 1   STATE OF ARIZONA    )
   COUNTY OF MARICOPA  )


 2
  


 3             BE IT KNOWN that the foregoing proceedings were
   taken before me; that the foregoing pages are a full,


 4   true, and accurate record of the proceedings, all done to
   the best of my skill and ability; that the proceedings


 5   were taken down by me in shorthand and thereafter reduced
   to print under my direction.


 6
             I CERTIFY that I am in no way related to any of


 7   the parties hereto nor am I in any way interested in the
   outcome hereof.


 8
             I CERTIFY that I have complied with the ethical


 9   obligations set forth in ACJA 7-206(F)(3) and ACJA
   7-206(J)(1)(g)(1) and (2).  Dated at Phoenix, Arizona,


10   this 9th day of December, 2021.
  


11
  


12
  


13             ___________________________________
                   CAROLYN T. SULLIVAN, RPR


14                 Arizona Certified Reporter
                          No. 50528


15
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17             I CERTIFY that COASH & COASH, INC., has complied
   with the ethical obligations set forth in ACJA
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22
             ___________________________________


23                     COASH & COASH, INC.
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           1             BE IT REMEMBERED that the above-entitled and 



           2  numbered matter came on regularly to be heard before the 



           3  Arizona Power Plant and Transmission Line Siting 



           4  Committee, commencing at 3:01 p.m. on the 7th day of 



           5  December, 2021, with all participants appearing via 



           6  videoconference.



           7  

              BEFORE:   PAUL A. KATZ, Chairman

           8  

              

           9  APPEARANCES:

              

          10  For the Applicant:

              

          11       JENNINGS, STROUSS & SALMON, P.L.C.

                   Mr. Albert Acken

          12       One East Washington Street

                   Suite 1900

          13       Phoenix, Arizona 85004

              

          14       and

              

          15       SALT RIVER PROJECT

                   Ms. Karilee Ramaley

          16       Senior Principal Attorney

                   P.O. Box 52025

          17       Legal Services PAB381

                   Phoenix, Arizona 85072-2025

          18  

              

          19  ALSO PRESENT:

              

          20       Mr. William Mcclellan, SRP, Project Co-manager

                   Mr. Spence Wilhelm, SRP, Project Co-manager

          21       Ms. Michele Maser, SRP, Senior Legal Specialist 

                   Mr. Josh Robertson, SRP 

          22          Director, Regulatory Policy & Public Involvement

                   Ms. Christina Hallows, SRP 

          23          Manager, Public Involvement

                   Mr. Devin Petry, SWCA Environmental Consultants

          24       Ms. Krista Perry, SWCA Environmental Consultants

                   Mr. Tod Brewer, Assistant to Chairman Chenal

          25             
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           1             CHMN. KATZ:  This is the time that we have 



           2  set -- and we are on the record -- this is the time we 



           3  have set for a prefiling -- yeah, this is a prefiling 



           4  conference, correct, in the matter of the application of 



           5  Salt River Project to expand their Coolidge power plant.



           6             And I would ask counsel who is present, if he 



           7  would, to please identify himself for the court record.



           8             MR. ACKEN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Bert 



           9  Acken of Jennings, Strouss & Salmon on behalf of the 



          10  pending applicant, Salt River Project.  



          11             CHMN. KATZ:  And are there any other lawyers 



          12  from SRP that are working with you that are present here 



          13  today?



          14             MR. ACKEN:  Yes.  Karilee Ramaley of SRP Legal 



          15  is also here and present.  Michele Maser works in the 



          16  legal department as well as a paralegal for us.



          17             CHMN. KATZ:  That's fine.



          18             And as we sit here right now, has there been 



          19  much of any public interest expressed?  I know I've seen 



          20  a -- Krista has joined us; is that correct?



          21             MR. ACKEN:  This is Spence Wilhelm.



          22             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.



          23             MR. ACKEN:  He is one of the co-project -- 



          24             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.



          25             MR. ACKEN:  -- managers.  My apologies.  I 
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           1  wasn't sure if Spence was going to be able to join us.



           2             CHMN. KATZ:  And so far has there been any 



           3  public interest in this project?



           4             I've seen a letter from somebody that was upset 



           5  that we might be burning fossil fuels.  But until we are 



           6  completely independent of fossil fuels, we're going to be 



           7  needing to generate electricity using them, particularly 



           8  when there's inadequate storage of solar and wind power 



           9  by and large.



          10             Outside of that, has there been any major 



          11  public interest expressed, positively or negatively?



          12             MR. ACKEN:  So we have held a number of open 



          13  houses, stakeholder outreach, you name it, that Christina 



          14  will not talk about today but will be prepared to talk 



          15  about at the hearing.



          16             And I would say it's somewhat mixed.  There is 



          17  certainly the opposition to natural gas from some 



          18  stakeholders based on climate change reasons.  As of this 



          19  moment, however, Chairman, I have not heard from anyone 



          20  indicating that they are planning to intervene.



          21             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.



          22             MR. ACKEN:  So we had requested nine hearing 



          23  days with the expectation that we will have intervenors, 



          24  but that's still to be determined.  As of this moment in 



          25  time, I don't have a single potential intervenor to 



                    COASH & COASH, INC.                   602-258-1440

                    www.coashandcoash.com                  Phoenix, AZ

�              LS CASE NO. TBA    PREFILING CONFERENCE    12/07/2021  



                                                                      6



           1  identify or who has identified themselves to me or anyone 



           2  on this call.



           3             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  And if we don't have any, 



           4  we might end up -- we still could set it for the two 



           5  weeks, but I think that -- I'm hoping that we could get 



           6  it done in five -- four and a half days, but we'll have 



           7  to wait and see.



           8             MR. ACKEN:  Certainly, I mean, our direct case, 



           9  it will be a robust direct case as compared to the last 



          10  one that you and I just had.  There will be more to our 



          11  direct.  But, yes, without intervenors, this isn't a 



          12  nine-day hearing. 



          13             CHMN. KATZ:  If we get a Motion to Intervene, 



          14  we will take that up at the hearing, but I might need to 



          15  get back to you before then to see where we are at before 



          16  we would have our prehearing conference.



          17             But have you -- who are the interested parties 



          18  that may have been notified, such as cities, towns, 



          19  counties?



          20             MR. ACKEN:  Affected jurisdictions are the City 



          21  of Coolidge and Pinal County.  So they have been provided 



          22  or they will be provided notice of the application once 



          23  filed.  Those are the two affected jurisdictions.



          24             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  And I did see that you gave 



          25  us five exhibits.
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           1             One of them, No. 1, is Land Ownership/ 



           2  Jurisdiction.  It's a colored map.



           3             The second one is the Notice -- the Draft 



           4  Notice of Hearing, which looks fine to me.  And I think 



           5  that's the same Radisson Hotel we had an earlier hearing 



           6  at, but I'm not going to worry about it.  This Notice of 



           7  Hearing looks good to me.  I might want to review it in 



           8  further detail with Tod, but right now, it looks 



           9  satisfactory.



          10             And then Exhibit 3 was the Coolidge Expansion 



          11  Project Siting Committee Route Tour Itinerary.  And you 



          12  know from our last hearing, Mr. Acken, that the Committee 



          13  probably is going to want to have a tour.  I'm assuming 



          14  that this site is accessible, and a tour isn't going to 



          15  consume hours and hours.



          16             MR. ACKEN:  So we are expecting that the 



          17  Committee will want a tour, and that's why you have those 



          18  exhibits that Mr. Petry can speak to if you'd like more 



          19  information about the tour.



          20             Accessibility is going to be an issue.  We are 



          21  still evaluating our options for members of the general 



          22  public to get inside the fenceline, so to speak, of the 



          23  plant itself.  Certainly, we can have folks go up to the 



          24  fenceline, but we understand the Committee would like to 



          25  go inside.  I think it makes sense to go inside to show 
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           1  some of the existing facility.  We just need to work out 



           2  some of the logistics on how we can do that so that we 



           3  are prepared in case you have members of the public that 



           4  also want to follow along on the tour.



           5             So that's the only open item, if you will.  So 



           6  I would ask for some flexibility and time for us to run 



           7  that to ground and figure out what that looks like.  



           8  Again, if we're talking ten or so members of the public, 



           9  we're pretty confident we can accommodate that; but if 



          10  we've got a lot, we're going to have to figure some 



          11  things out.  So we need to run that to ground.



          12             CHMN. KATZ:  I understand, and I did get your 



          13  Exhibit 4, which is the route tour.  We don't need to go 



          14  into detail regarding it.  I'm assuming that from what 



          15  you're showing, we don't have a lot of driving to do.  I 



          16  mean, we have to go to Coolidge; but once we're there, 



          17  I'm assuming, at the site, it's not that expansive of an 



          18  area that we would be viewing.



          19             MR. ACKEN:  No, that's correct, Mr. Chairman.  



          20  I mean, you're basically doing a 1-mile-square perimeter 



          21  of the project area with a few stops in there.  The big 



          22  issue will be if we have a stop inside the facility, that 



          23  will take some time.



          24             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  And how much time do you 



          25  think we'd likely be between getting there, touring, and 
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           1  getting back?  Half a day?  A couple of hours?



           2             MR. ACKEN:  Mr. Chairman, we're assuming half a 



           3  day.  You are correct that this is a short drive from 



           4  Casa Grande Radisson over to the facility.  But, again, 



           5  the lead time to get into the facility and to do and see 



           6  some of that, our best estimate right now is half a day.



           7             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  And I do have your 



           8  Exhibit 5.  It shows where one, two, three, four, five, 



           9  six, seven signs have been posted, and it looks like 



          10  they're along the east and west perimeter of the site as 



          11  well as one to the north of the site.  Is that 



          12  essentially correct?



          13             MR. ACKEN:  That's where the signs will be 



          14  posted.



          15             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.



          16             MR. ACKEN:  Mr. Petry can correct me, but I 



          17  think those sign locations are land that SRP owns, so we 



          18  know we can put signs there.



          19             We may be able to post a couple additional 



          20  signs in other locations, but, frankly, I think seven 



          21  should be more than adequate if we're unable to do that, 



          22  and I hope you would agree.  But, yeah, the idea was to, 



          23  if you will, hit the perimeter of the project with signs.



          24             CHMN. KATZ:  I think that that's more than 



          25  adequate.



                    COASH & COASH, INC.                   602-258-1440

                    www.coashandcoash.com                  Phoenix, AZ

�              LS CASE NO. TBA    PREFILING CONFERENCE    12/07/2021  



                                                                      10



           1             And what publications have taken place 



           2  regarding this matter?  Or if not yet, when will you be 



           3  publishing?



           4             MR. ACKEN:  So, obviously, publication for the 



           5  application will happen after the filing.  There has been 



           6  publications done.  But, again, Ms. Hallows would be in a 



           7  better position to go into detail for open houses, some 



           8  public stakeholder meetings, things of that nature, that 



           9  we have done as part of the preapplication phase.



          10             Once we file the application, we will be 



          11  submitting -- the newspaper publication will be the Casa 



          12  Grande Dispatch.  So there used to be multiple 



          13  newspapers.  The Coolidge Examiner and Casa Grande 



          14  Dispatch have merged.  But we will be filing multiple 



          15  times in that newspaper -- or publishing, excuse me.  So 



          16  the 18th, the 21st, and the 23rd will all be within our 



          17  ten-day window from the date of the application filing so 



          18  we meet our statutory notice time frames.



          19             We are also filing as a supplement on the 26th.  



          20  So we recognize that's outside the statutory window, but 



          21  we're just doing it as a supplement.



          22             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  And the notice of affected 



          23  jurisdictions.  Have they been sent out yet or is that -- 



          24  it's premature, but you'll be notifying both Casa 



          25  Grande -- excuse me, Pinal County and Coolidge?
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           1             MR. ACKEN:  That's correct.



           2             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  The evidentiary hearing, we 



           3  know where that is going to be set, at that Radisson 



           4  Hotel in Casa Grande, correct?  



           5             MR. ACKEN:  Yes.  And we'll have the same setup 



           6  that the Committee has become accustomed to with both 



           7  live-streaming options, all the video technology 



           8  available there.



           9             The notice that you saw has the same 



          10  admonitions and requests that the public participate 



          11  virtually, but we will certainly be available for some to 



          12  participate in person should they show.  We do anticipate 



          13  public interest in this project.  Whether they will 



          14  appear in Casa Grande or virtually will be determined.  



          15  But in either event, we will be ready for them.



          16             One thing that we have proposed in the Notice 



          17  of Hearing that I wanted to flag for you is we would like 



          18  to start this hearing at 9:00 a.m. -- sometimes the 



          19  Committee will start at 1:00 -- since it's in Casa 



          20  Grande, which isn't too far a drive for folks that want 



          21  to drive down.  And also we'll have accommodations for 



          22  folks that want to come down the night before.  Again, 



          23  given the concern in case we do draw intervenors and it 



          24  extends the hearing window, we would like to start right 



          25  out of the gate at 9.
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           1             CHMN. KATZ:  The reason that I probably won't 



           2  agree to do that is that we have Jim Palmer, as an 



           3  example, comes here from Graham County.  He attends in 



           4  person.  Jack Haenichen comes down from Heber.  And I 



           5  don't know whether we'll get Toby little, who lives in 



           6  Tucson, to attend or not.  But not everybody is in the 



           7  neighborhood.  So the reason we generally start late is 



           8  so people don't have to stay in a hotel Sunday night.  So 



           9  we probably won't begin until 1:00.  And if we have to go 



          10  into the second week, we'll recess Friday at 4:30 or 5:00 



          11  and pick back up the following Monday.



          12             And we're looking at starting on January 18th; 



          13  is that correct?



          14             MR. ACKEN:  Correct.  That Tuesday, the day 



          15  after the Martin Luther King Holiday.



          16             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  And you will be making 



          17  arrangements, be in contact with the Committee Members 



          18  and working with Tod, to the extent necessary, to make 



          19  sure that there are adequate accommodations for the 



          20  Committee Members.



          21             And I will be staying, obviously.  I'm not 



          22  going to -- even though I live in Scottsdale, I'm not 



          23  going to commute an hour and a half twice a day -- hour, 



          24  hour and a half, so I will be staying in the hotel.  And 



          25  that would be Tuesday through Friday.  And if we come 
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           1  back, I'll not spend the weekend.  I'll go home.



           2             MR. ACKEN:  Yes, Mr. Chairman, Mr. Petry's team 



           3  has been handling logistics for the hearing location 



           4  itself as well as accommodations for the Committee and 



           5  for our team as well.  And I share your perspective.  I 



           6  don't think I'm going to spend the weekend in Casa 



           7  Grande.



           8             CHMN. KATZ:  I am going to want -- I don't need 



           9  to get an explanation of the tour right now, but I would 



          10  like to have you submit a plan for a tour at the 



          11  prehearing conference and file it with the ACC Docket 



          12  Control folks.



          13             MR. ACKEN:  Okay.  So just let me be clear on 



          14  that ask.  What we have marked as an exhibit for this 



          15  prefiling is a map showing the route along with the route 



          16  stops.  Is that adequate, or do you want more information 



          17  as far as protocol?  Maybe by then, we have this 



          18  information on what the public can and can't do.  Is that 



          19  what you'd like to see?



          20             CHMN. KATZ:  Well, I think we have the map.  



          21  That gives us an idea.  But I think we would want to have 



          22  at the prehearing conference at least a little bit better 



          23  understanding of how long things might take and how we're 



          24  going to handle the public versus the Committee Members, 



          25  etc.
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           1             MR. ACKEN:  Okay.  Understood.  Will do.



           2             CHMN. KATZ:  And, Tod, is there any specific 



           3  thing that you think we should be requiring them to do?



           4             MR. BREWER:  Not that I can think of, 



           5  Mr. Chairman.



           6             CHMN. KATZ:  Thank you.



           7             And I don't know what day we would take that 



           8  tour on.  Sometime on Wednesday?



           9             MR. ACKEN:  That is how we have proposed it.  



          10  We think that makes sense.  Again, I guess I thought that 



          11  made -- I was thinking we could get off to an earlier 



          12  start.  We start at 1:00.  I would like to be able to get 



          13  through Mr. Mcclellan's direct and some others to lay 



          14  some -- well, "foundation" is the wrong term, not in a 



          15  legal sense, but just so it makes a little more sense 



          16  when the Committee goes on the tour.  But we were 



          17  thinking the second day would be the best time to do the 



          18  tour, and that's how the Notice of Hearing is drafted.



          19             CHMN. KATZ:  Thank you.



          20             And, Tod, when would we be setting our 



          21  prehearing conference?



          22             MR. BREWER:  The week of January the 10th.



          23             CHMN. KATZ:  You've probably looked at my 



          24  calendar.  I don't think I have anything set in January.



          25             MR. BREWER:  No, you do not, sir.
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           1             CHMN. KATZ:  So we could do it the 10th -- I 



           2  don't have my calendar out, but we could do the 10th, 



           3  11th, 12th.  When would you like to have that set?  And 



           4  probably at maybe 2:00 in the afternoon?



           5             MR. ACKEN:  So my preference, with that in 



           6  mind, would be the 11th if you want to do it in the 



           7  afternoon because I'm assuming the Procedural Order will 



           8  require us to file and exchange exhibits the day before 



           9  the prehearing, if not sooner.



          10             CHMN. KATZ:  Right.



          11             MR. ACKEN:  So that gives us the 10th to make 



          12  that happen.  So that would be my ask, is that we do it 



          13  on the 11th.  The 12th is a little ...



          14             CHMN. KATZ:  We could do it on the 11th.  I 



          15  don't know whether you would prefer it in the morning or 



          16  the afternoon.



          17             MR. ACKEN:  I guess I would prefer it in the 



          18  afternoon of the 11th or morning of the 12th looking at 



          19  my schedule personally.



          20             CHMN. KATZ:  Tod, what do you think works best?  



          21  It doesn't matter to me.



          22             MR. BREWER:  Let's do 2:00 on the 11th.



          23             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  We will do it at 2:00 on 



          24  the 11th.



          25             There's no related litigation or disputes that 
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           1  we currently need to discuss; is that correct?



           2             MR. ACKEN:  Yes, that is correct.  Again, we've 



           3  heard some folks, obviously, who are opposed to the 



           4  project, but they haven't identified themselves to me or 



           5  expressed a desire to intervene here or in some other 



           6  forum.



           7             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  And one of my checklist 



           8  items says to inform you that everyone needs to get a 



           9  copy of the application, but that would be only the 



          10  interested parties or the intervenors and, obviously, the 



          11  City and Pinal County.



          12             MR. ACKEN:  Yes, we will do that.  We're also 



          13  making it available at a couple library locations.



          14             CHMN. KATZ:  And, Tod, I don't have a copy of 



          15  the Draft Procedural Order.  I'm assuming it's going to 



          16  be pretty similar to the ones we have previously issued?



          17             MR. BREWER:  Correct.



          18             CHMN. KATZ:  And, Mr. Acken, it would probably 



          19  be very similar to the one that you received in the 



          20  hearing that we just completed.



          21             MR. ACKEN:  Yes.  I'm sorry.  The only item -- 



          22  or one item that comes to my mind is in that Procedural 



          23  Order we haven't talked about is -- I'll say to provide 



          24  notice through social media as discussed at the 



          25  prefiling.  So do you want to go over our plan for social 
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           1  media notice for the hearing itself now or --



           2             CHMN. KATZ:  I'd at least like to have an idea 



           3  of what you're going to be doing regarding social media.



           4             MR. ACKEN:  Okay.  So with that, I'm going to 



           5  turn it over to Ms. Hallows to explain the plan for 



           6  notice, the social media notice, of the hearing itself.



           7             MS. HALLOWS:  Thank you, Bert.



           8             What our plan is, is to run targeted social 



           9  media ads through Facebook, Instagram, and Nextdoor for 



          10  two weeks.  So we would start that on January 4th, and 



          11  they would run until Tuesday, January 18th.  And that 



          12  would be targeted to the 7-mile radius that we've used as 



          13  our 7-mile notification radius.



          14             And also Facebook and Instagram, those ads 



          15  would be run in English and Spanish, and then Nextdoor is 



          16  just English.  That's all they offer.



          17             CHMN. KATZ:  That's just like it sounds?  I 



          18  haven't heard of that site before, but it's Nextdoor?



          19             MS. HALLOWS:  Nextdoor, uh-huh.



          20             CHMN. KATZ:  And are you going to post anything 



          21  on the SRP website so that the public would have the 



          22  ability to view that information?



          23             MS. HALLOWS:  Yes, sir.



          24             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  And are you planning any 



          25  virtual -- I'm not telling you you have to, but are you 
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           1  planning any virtual open houses, or are you having a 



           2  phone number for people to contact and ask questions?  



           3  And will that be set out on the website?  



           4             MS. HALLOWS:  Yes.  We do currently have that, 



           5  and we did already hold virtual live open houses as well 



           6  as in person.



           7             CHMN. KATZ:  Sounds good.



           8             Mr. Acken, I would also ask that -- and it 



           9  could be on a day or two before the hearing, that you get 



          10  us your draft of the prehearing conference -- not the 



          11  prehearing conference, but the draft conditions for the 



          12  CEC.  And I know that this isn't power lines, but there 



          13  may need to be some revisions in terms of how we do this.  



          14  I've only sat through about -- I witnessed one and 



          15  conducted four hearings, but they were all gen-tie lines, 



          16  and I am not familiar with whether or not the conditions 



          17  are substantially different when we're dealing with a 



          18  gas-fired power plant.



          19             MR. ACKEN:  We will certainly have proposed 



          20  conditions tailored to this project.  A number of them in 



          21  my experience will be similar, but, yes, there is -- we 



          22  will look to past cases.  There's a handful of recent 



          23  ones for guidance as to standard conditions to propose.



          24             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  And any public comments, 



          25  we'll probably do those at 5:30 on the first day of the 
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           1  hearing.  And if we have a lot of people wanting to talk, 



           2  we may limit them to two or three minutes per person.  



           3  You'll need to have some cards available for them to sign 



           4  in.  And if they appear virtually, we're going to require 



           5  them to state their names and perhaps, if it's 



           6  complicated, spell their last name for the benefit of the 



           7  Committee and our court reporter.



           8             MR. ACKEN:  Yes, we will be prepared for that.



           9             CHMN. KATZ:  And I don't know whether we'll 



          10  have any of the Board of Supervisors or City officials 



          11  that want to comment, and I don't know whether or not 



          12  we'll need to have any of them sworn in.  That's not 



          13  necessary, but they could be sworn in or affirmed if you 



          14  think it helps the situation.  If not, they would be 



          15  given the first opportunity to speak so we won't keep 



          16  them there for hours and hours if we have a lot of 



          17  people.



          18             And if we don't get all of that done on the 



          19  first day, we may have public comment continued a couple 



          20  days thereafter.  But I'm hoping that we don't have more 



          21  than about an hour or so of public comments or less.  But 



          22  I have no way of knowing.



          23             MR. ACKEN:  Mr. Chairman, with respect to local 



          24  officials, I can't tell you today whether we will or will 



          25  not have folks come to speak.  If we do, we appreciate 
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           1  the accommodation of letting them speak first if it's in 



           2  the evening.  Sometimes what we've done in the past is 



           3  have additional public comment sessions, as you said, at 



           4  1:00 after a lunch break to accommodate their schedules 



           5  and their availability.



           6             CHMN. KATZ:  That's fine.



           7             MR. ACKEN:  I will say it's very unlikely we're 



           8  going to ask that they go under oath.  There's not much 



           9  past precedent for that.  So we would envision it being 



          10  in the nature of public comment.



          11             CHMN. KATZ:  I'm assuming that this entire 



          12  expansion is going to be on SRP-owned property; is that 



          13  correct?



          14             MR. ACKEN:  Yes.



          15             CHMN. KATZ:  What about -- I'm assuming that we 



          16  don't have any federal permits that are required, though 



          17  I'm not sure of that.  But I'm just wondering what the 



          18  status is of federal, state, county, city, or town 



          19  permitting.



          20             MR. ACKEN:  So there is no federal nexus, no 



          21  federal permitting requirement, no NEPA analysis.  We're 



          22  in the -- the project is in the City of Coolidge 



          23  jurisdiction.  It's zoned for this.



          24             As far as building permit, things of that 



          25  nature, I would defer to Mr. Mcclellan and Mr. Wilhelm if 
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           1  they have additional context at this time or if you want 



           2  to wait to the hearing for that, but that's kind of a 



           3  high-level overview.



           4             CHMN. KATZ:  I'm just don't know -- I'm 



           5  assuming that not every permit's going to be applied for 



           6  in advance because you need to get the CEC before you can 



           7  start doing certain things.  But do we have any pending 



           8  permit applications with the City or the County?  



           9             MR. ACKEN:  We actually -- you know, we do with 



          10  the County, an air quality with the Pinal County Air 



          11  Quality District.  So I should mention the Air Quality 



          12  Permit with Pinal County, and I believe there will be an 



          13  Aquifer Protection Permit with ADEQ.  So those -- I know 



          14  the Air Quality Permit application has been submitted.  I 



          15  do not know the status of the APP.  Maybe someone else on 



          16  this call does, or we will certainly have that available.



          17             CHMN. KATZ:  I mean, if anybody knows the 



          18  status, they can identify themselves and let us know.  



          19  But, obviously, we may not have all of that information 



          20  presently available.



          21             MR. WILHELM:  The APP permit has not been 



          22  placed yet.



          23             CHMN. KATZ:  But you'll be filing that at some 



          24  point in time with ADEQ?



          25             MR. WILHELM:  Yes.
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           1             CHMN. KATZ:  And that's Spence Wilhelm that was 



           2  just talking?



           3             MR. WILHELM:  Yes.



           4             CHMN. KATZ:  And are you employed by SRP?  



           5             MR. WILHELM:  I am.



           6             CHMN. KATZ:  Thank you very much.



           7             With respect to technology, we've all been 



           8  there before.  We need to make sure we have strong WiFi, 



           9  and we didn't have any WiFi problems in our last meeting 



          10  in Casa Grande.  We had a few little glitches in our last 



          11  hearing in Tucson, but we just need to make sure we have 



          12  proper, strong, good WiFi.



          13             And with respect to exhibits, I always like a 



          14  hard copy.  Some of the Committee people are more than 



          15  happy to just get digital copies of the exhibits, but we 



          16  should have at least a few notebooks available.  We've 



          17  usually been having about five or six of our members in 



          18  person, myself included, and three, four, five appearing 



          19  virtually.  But we just need to make sure they have 



          20  access to exhibits either electronically or on the screen 



          21  that gets presented so that they see what we're talking 



          22  about or hard copies.  And we're obviously not going to 



          23  be sending hard copies out to those who appear virtually.



          24             MR. ACKEN:  Yes, we will do so.  We'll have 



          25  hard copies available for those that want them and 
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           1  tablets for those that want to look at it in electronic 



           2  form.



           3             And, yes, it's my expectation that the WiFi 



           4  will be up and running long before the hearing starts, 



           5  unlike last time.



           6             CHMN. KATZ:  So I'm not all that worried.  Are 



           7  you using the same crew as last time, last hearing?



           8             MR. ACKEN:  Yes.



           9             CHMN. KATZ:  Good.  They know what they're 



          10  doing, and we'll be in good shape.  And I know you'll be 



          11  providing iPads or some type of tablet for the benefit of 



          12  the Committee Members to be able to open up exhibits as 



          13  needed.



          14             MR. ACKEN:  Yes.



          15             CHMN. KATZ:  Are there any other miscellaneous 



          16  issues that we need to be aware of today?



          17             MR. ACKEN:  Looking at my list, I think we have 



          18  it covered, but I would ask my team, if someone knows of 



          19  something that is missing, please speak up.



          20             CHMN. KATZ:  I believe our court reporter 



          21  generally or the company would like to have final 



          22  transcripts of the conference and hearing posted to the 



          23  applicant website.



          24             And, Carolyn, would we be talking about the 



          25  transcripts of this proceeding or the transcripts of the 
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           1  prehearing conference or just the transcripts of the 



           2  hearing itself?



           3             THE COURT REPORTER:  Mr. Chairman, you would 



           4  have to speak with Marta Hetzer at my office about that.



           5             CHMN. KATZ:  I will ask you, Mr. Acken, if you 



           6  can do that.  And if there are any issues or problems, to 



           7  please let me know.



           8             MR. ACKEN:  Yes.  It's our expectation that we 



           9  will be -- we will have the read-only transcripts 



          10  available within a couple days, and then we will post 



          11  those on the website.



          12             CHMN. KATZ:  At the hearing, like I've done 



          13  previously, we will not go generally any longer than an 



          14  hour and a half and then take a 15-minute break.  But I'm 



          15  hopeful that the Committee and your staff, SRP staff and 



          16  your staff, Mr. Acken, will be cooperative so we don't 



          17  dillydally.  And if we say 15 minutes, it could be 14, it 



          18  could be 16, but I don't want it being 25 or 30.



          19             MR. ACKEN:  There will be no dillydallying from 



          20  our team.  Again, if we have intervenors, we're going to 



          21  ask to keep this moving, and we will do our part to keep 



          22  it moving.



          23             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  Are there any -- I guess 



          24  there's no objections to be voiced at this point in time 



          25  to anything because things are still up in the air, and 
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           1  we don't have any intervenors that are proposing 



           2  intervention that you might object to or giving us 



           3  exhibits that are outrageous or inadmissible.



           4             MR. ACKEN:  Yes, that's correct.  I mean the 



           5  interventions, if they come, we would expect it would be 



           6  from groups that, quite honestly, have the right to 



           7  intervene, so there's not going to be much to object to 



           8  there.



           9             Individuals, that may be a different approach, 



          10  and we may ask, just so you know, if we draw a lot of 



          11  intervention, that some folks be -- their interests be 



          12  combined for the purposes of a smooth hearing.  But we 



          13  can deal with that if and when we get to it at the time.



          14             CHMN. KATZ:  And I'm not putting it down, but 



          15  I'm assuming that most of our community members aren't 



          16  trained lawyers, and I don't know that they'll be 



          17  prepared to come in pro per as an intervenor or file the 



          18  appropriate paperwork.  I would expect, though, that if 



          19  there's a whole host of people that have the same or 



          20  similar objections that they'll hire a lawyer, but we'll 



          21  cross that bridge when we come to it.



          22             Is there anything else that you think we need 



          23  to discuss, Mr. Acken?



          24             MR. ACKEN:  I do not.  Thank you.



          25             CHMN. KATZ:  I'll ask Mr. Brewer, Tod, whether 
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           1  he has anything that he thinks I need or we need to 



           2  cover.



           3             MR. BREWER:  No, Mr. Chairman, I think we have 



           4  everything.



           5             CHMN. KATZ:  Well, I look forward to seeing you 



           6  folks after the new year.  Be healthy and happy after the 



           7  upcoming holiday season and be healthy.  I already said 



           8  that, but hopefully nobody will come down with COVID or 



           9  some other terrible disease, and we'll see you early to 



          10  mid-January.



          11             MR. ACKEN:  Thank you.



          12             CHMN. KATZ:  Take care.  And if we need to get 



          13  together again, you can either file something or give Tod 



          14  or myself a call.



          15             MR. ACKEN:  Will do.  Thank you.



          16             CHMN. KATZ:  Take care.  Bye-bye.



          17             We stand in recess.



          18             (The prefiling conference concluded at 3:34.)
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